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Phone: (021) 34601372-74

15th Milestone, National Highway, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi
Phone: (021) 38183610-3

39-C, Bukhari Commercial area, Lane 15, Main Khayaban-e-lttehad Road
DHA Phase 6, Karachi. Phone: (021) 37249564

26th Street Plot C-8-C, DHA Phase 5, Karachi.
Phone: (021) 37228922

Build Mate 82-B, Midway Commercial, Bahria Town, Karachi
Phone: 0307-0228246

Shop No. 3, KDA Scheme No. 7, Chandni Chowk (New Town), Karachi
Phone: (021) 34921011
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Phone: (042) 37185710-12

Metro Cash & Carry, Thokar Niaz Baig Multan Road, Lahore
Phone: 0301-8245893

Ferozepur Road: 83 - Main Ferozepur Road, Main Ichhra, Lahore
Phone: 0301-8207942

Al Shareef Plaza, Ground Floor, Shamsabad, Murree Road, Rawalpindi
Phone: (051) 4935521-23

Metro Islamabad: Metro Cash & Carry, Sector I-11/4, Islamabad
Phone: (051) 8469524

162/408 Tahkal Payan, University Road , Peshawar
Phone: (091) 3028068

Talha Heights , Main Susan Road, P-243, 2A, Faisalabad
Phone: (041) 8739988

Shop no. 13 & 14, Fortune Arcade, Jamshoro Road, next to KFC
Near Qasim Chowk, Hyderabad. Phone: 0300-8540459

Officers Colony, Main Bosan Road, Chungi No. 9, Next to Crystal Malll,
Multan. Phone: (061) 2078492

Ground Floor, Commercial Building, Khawat No. 199/197, Moza Bandra
Multan Road, Bahawalpur. Phone: 0300-2032142

Khan Plaza, Khasra No 434, GT Road, near Raja Saab Mall, Wah Cantt
Phone: (051) 4926280-81

Main GT Road, Chan da Qila, opposite Haji Murad Trust Eye Hospital,
Gujranwala. Phone : 0315-2780820

Shop no. 14, Akbar Market, Khomar Yarkot, Gilgit
Phone: 05811-553865 , 0300-8285725

Plot No. A-1/2, New Defence View Housing Scheme, Jampur Road,
Dera Ghazi Khan. Phone: 0300-2032142

Tooba Plaza, Mezzanine Floor, Workshop Road, Sukkur.
Phone: (071) 5615560
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VISION MISSION

While Maintaining our "Stile" Brand Our Mission is to Maintain our Position as the
. Leader in the tile Industry in Pakistan and for this

as Market Leader’ We Continue to Purpose we will Continue to Focus on:
Delight our Customers by also | | _
Bringing in International Brands in v S ST (CmTiEe. T Qrelhny [Presless e il
. L ) Provide our Customers with Innovative Sizes,
the Field of Building Materials, By Designs and Color Scheme that they will be
Offering the Best Quality and Delighted to have and Shall Provide them with

Excellent Services to Earn their Loyalty.

Innovative Products at Competitive

Prices, Taking into Account the « We Shall Treat our Employees Fairly and shall

' Provide Conducive Working Environment for
Stakeholders' Interest. them to Learn and to Grow with the Company.

» The Company shall Earn Adequate Profits for
its Progress and Growth and for Providing
Reasonable Return to its Shareholders.
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 45th Annual General Meeting of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS
LIMITED will be held on Monday, October 23, 2023 at 10:30 a.m. at Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP), Near Three Swords, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2023, together with the Chairman’s Review Report, Directors’ report and
Auditors’ thereon.

In accordance with section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, financial statements of the
Company have been uploaded on Company’s website, which can be downloaded from following
link and QR enabled code:

https://www.stile.com.pk/wp-content/uploads/reports/annual-report-2023.pdf

To appoint auditors for the year 2023-24 and to fix their remuneration. The Board Audit Committee

2,
and Board of Directors have recommended M/s. A. F. Fergusons & Co., Chartered Accountants as
auditors for appointment by the Company’s members in the Annual General Meeting in place of
retiring auditors — M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Toconsider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a ordinary resolution, to enable the

Company to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements, to the members of the Company
through QR enabled code and weblink, as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (“SECP”) vide its Notification S.R.O. 389 (1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, instead of
circulating the same through CD/DVD/USB.

RESOLVED THAT , the Company be and is hereby authorized to circulate its Annual Audited Financial

Statements, to the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in accordance
with S.R.0. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, issued by the SECP.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer or Company Secretary of the Company be

and hereby singly authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all
necessary actions to comply with all legal formalities and requirements and file necessary
documents as may be necessary or incidental for the purpose of implementing this resolution.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board
OVAIS JAMANI ‘ ; i
Karachi: October 02, 2023 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1.

(i)

Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 17, 2023 to
October 23, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting. Transfers
requests received by CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’,
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, Phone # (021) 111 111 500, email:
cdcsrsl@cdcsrsl.com at the close of business on October 16, 2023; will be treated in time for
the purpose to attend the Annual General Meeting.

Participation in the AGM via physical presence or through video conferencing

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular No. 4 dated February
15, 2021 has directed the listed companies to ensure the participation of members in general
meeting through electronic means as a regular feature in addition to holding physical
meetings. Accordingly, the shareholders intending to participate in the meeting via video link,
are requested to register their intent beforehand by submitting their particulars at the
designated e-mail address corporate@stile.com.pk as per the table below. Video conference
link details and login credentials will be shared with ONLY those Shareholders, whose
particulars are received on or before October 21, 2023, from their registered e-mail
addresses.

Shareholder Name | Folio/CDC No. | CNIC Number | Cell Number | Registered Email ID

The login facility will be opened at 10:00 a.m. on October 23, 2023 enabling the participants
to join the proceedings which will start at 10:30 a.m. sharp.

Members whose names appearing in the Register of Members as of October 16, 2023, are
entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting.

Proxy:

A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend,
speak and vote in his place at the Meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy and the power of
attorney or other authority under which it is signed, or a notary certified copy of the power or
authority must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before
the time of the meeting.

CDC Account Holders will have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).

For Attending the Meeting:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.
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(ii)

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

()

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)
V)

b)

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are
in-group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy
form as per the above requirement.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

Notarized copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy be furnished with the
proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

Code of Conduct for Shareholders in General Meeting

Section 215 of Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”) and Regulation 28 of the Companies (General Provisions
and Forms) Regulations, 2018, state the Code of Conduct of the Shareholders as follows:

Shareholders are not permitted to exert influence or approach the management directly for decisions
which may lead to the creation of hurdles in the smooth functioning of management. The law states that
Shareholders shall not bring material that may cause threat to participants or premises where the AGM is
being held, confine themselves to the agenda items covered in the notice of the AGM and shall not
conduct themselves in a manner to disclose any political affiliation.

Any shareholder who fails to conduct in the manner provided in this section and as specified by the
Commission shall be guilty of an offence under this section and shall be liable to a penalty not exceeding
level 1 on the standard scale.

Additionally, in compliance with Section 185 of Companies Act, 2017; the Company is not permitted to
distribute gifts in any form to its members in its meeting.

Change of Address

The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the Company’s
Share Registrar.

Submission of copies of valid CNIC not provided earlier

Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if not provided
earlier, to the Company's Share Registrar.

10.
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Submission of Information to Share Registrar

According to Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 of the Companies (General
Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018, all physical shareholders are advised to provide their
mandatory information such as CNIC number, address, email address, contact (mobile/landline)
numbers, occupation, etc. to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited immediately to avoid any
non-compliance of law or any inconvenience in future.

Transmission Of Annual Financial Statements Through Email:

In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, those
shareholders who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in future through email instead of
receiving the same by Post are advised to give their formal consent along with their valid email address
on a standard request form which is available at the Company's website i.e. www.stile.com.pk and send
the said form duly filled in and signed along with copy of his/her/its CNIC/Passport or other such
information in the case of a body corporate to the Company's share registrar. The Company's Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023 is also being circulated to the shareholders in
compliance of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Submission Of CNIC / NTN Details (Mandatory Requirement):

As per Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 889(1)/2011 and SRO
831(1)/2012, dividend counters in electric form should bear the CNIC number of the authorized person
or registered member, except in case of minor (s) and corporate members. Accordingly, Members who
have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to the
Company / Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to
Company’ Share Registrar. In case of non-receipt of the copy of valid CNIC, the Company would be
constrained under the law to withhold the dividend of such shareholders.

Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory Requirement):

In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies
(Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend
to its shareholder ONLY through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the
entitled shareholder. Notice in this regard has already been published by the Company in the
newspapers, however, shareholders are once again requested to fill in "Electronic Credit Mandate
Form™ as reproduced below and send the duly signed Electronic Mandate Form along with a copy of
valid CNIC/NTN to their respective CDC participant / CDC Investor account services (in case of
shareholding in Book Entry Form) or to the Company's Share Registrar i.e. M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited (CDCSRSL), CDC House, 99-B, Block- 'B', S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400 (in case of shareholding in Physical Form):

Shareholder’s details:

Name of the Shareholder(s)

Folio No. / CDS Account No.

CNIC No. (Copy attached)

Mobile / Landline No.

Shareholder’s Bank details:

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN)

Bank’s Name

Branch’s Name and Address
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

In case of non-provision of above information, the Company will have to withhold the cash dividend
according to section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Deposit of Physical Shares In CDC Account:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form.

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub - account with any of
the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form.

Unclaimed Dividend / Unpaid Shares

In compliance of Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, once the company has completed stipulated
formalities, any unclaimed dividend and /or shares that have remained outstanding for a period of three
years from the date of becoming due and payable or more shall be credited to the Federal Government
(in case of dividend) or delivered to the SECP (in case of physical shares). Shareholders who by any
reason could not collect and remain their unclaimed dividend/shares are advised to contact our Shares
Registrar of the Company, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (CDCSRSL), CDC House, 99-8,
Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to collect / inquire about their unclaimed
dividend or shares, if any.

Status of Active Taxpayers List (ATL)

All the shareholders are advised to check their status on Active Taxpayer List (ATL) available on FBR
Website and if required take necessary actions for the inclusion of their name in ATL.

In case a person's hame does not appear in the ATL, the applicable tax rate will be increased by hundred
percent.

In case of joint account, please intimate proportion of shareholding of each account holder along with their
individual status on the ATL.

Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of the valid tax
exemption certificate is made available to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited by first day of Book
Closure.

Postal Ballot / E-Voting

Members may exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballet i.e. by post or through electronic mode
subject to the requirements of section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of
Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

Statement U/S 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017:

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business, given in Agenda No. 3 of the
Notice, intended to be transacted at the AGM.
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Agenda No. 3 of the Notice

In view of the technological advancements, the SECP has allowed Listed Companies, through its SRO
No. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements, to the
Members of the Company through QR-enabled code and weblink, which is to be included in the Notice of
shareholders meeting. The Company shall circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements, through email,
in case it has been provided by the members to the Company and shall also send hard copies of Annual
Audited Financial Statements, to the shareholders, free of cost, upon receipt of a duly completed Request
Form, as available on the Company’s website (www.stile.com.pk).

None of the directors of the Company have any direct or indirect interest in the special business, except
in their capacity as members and directors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW REPORT
AND DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
| have great pleasure in presenting the Chairman’s review report for the year ended June 30, 2023.
MACRO ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Pakistan's economy experienced un-precedented challenges in the past year. The devastating
floods, coupled with a commodity price shock arising from Russia-Ukraine war, and the constricting
of both external and domestic financing conditions, along with policy setbacks, exacerbated
economic challenges and brought post-pandemic recovery to a standstill. As a result, economic
growth came to a halt, inflation surged, forex reserves dwindled to critically low levels, and both fiscal
and external pressures reached a state of acute concern.

The manufacturing sector was adversely affected, experiencing a sharp drop of 9.4% in FY23. The
situation has been exacerbated by the recurring announcements of temporary plant shutdowns,
attributed to delays in importing intermediate raw materials, thereby hampering production
capabilities. Similarly, the construction industry also showed lackluster performance.

The economic and political landscape in Pakistan has been plagued by considerable uncertainty,
further compounded by escalating risk premia and media speculation surrounding the potential of a
sovereign debt default. As a consequence, both consumer and business confidence took a sharp
hit, with prevailing uncertainties instilling caution and apprehension among various stakeholders.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The tiles and ceramics industry of Pakistan has faced significant adverse impacts, primarily due to
the following factors:

» Slowdown in construction activities, leading to a suppressed market demand for tiles and
ceramics.

» Rising input, manufacturing & freight costs, primarily caused by the devaluation of the Pakistani
rupee, & soaring energy Costs.

* Restrictions on imported raw materials for tiles production amid dwindling foreign currency
reserves.

»  Continuous depletion of indigenous natural gas resulting in usage of more expensive alternate
fuels.

These challenges have had a severe effect on the industry, resulting in the closure of operations for
number of tiles manufacturers or have curtailed their production due to low secondary sales
demand.

Despite the challenging circumstances, your company managed to sustain its operations and
achieve better-than-expected results, specially in the second half of FY2023. The management
implemented several specific measures that played a crucial role in sustaining operations and
success:
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* Initiatives on cost controls and timely pricing decisions

»  Strategized to optimize its energy mix

* Development of local sources of raw materials

*  Brand building measures, including advocacy with key architects
o  Strategy to focus on high-value SKUs.

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

Over the past year, the company managed robust growth (in terms of revenue) due to strategic
actions as to managing its product portfolio and the sales channel mix. The front-end team
sustained sales volumes despite suppressed market conditions due to its diverse range of
high-quality tiles that cater to both residential and commercial projects. Despite challenges in
availability of imported raw materials, the management was able to ensure uninterrupted production
and ensuring availability of high-quality products to meet market demand. Furthermore, the
company has excelled in customer satisfaction, evident from positive feedback and a growing
customer base. Your Company has also made notable strides in sustainability initiatives,
demonstrating a commitment to environmental responsibility. Overall, the company has
successfully strengthened its market position and is well-poised for further growth and success in
the future.

Profitability was however badly affected by significant cost increase which could not be offset by
price increases due to poor economic conditions and slow demand. Increased Incidence of tax also
impacted the company’s profitability

BOARD PERFORMANCE AND ROLE IN ACHIEVING COMPANY’S OBJECTIVES

In compliance with the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, the Board has established a formal and effective mechanism to conduct an
annual evaluation of its own performance, as well as that of its Members and Sub-Committees. The
approval and successful implementation of this evaluation mechanism further demonstrate the
Board's commitment to adhering to corporate governance standards.

The board's overall performance has been commendable, showcasing strong leadership and
strategic decision-making throughout the assessed period. Their relentless dedication to upholding
the company's values and vision has translated into remarkable achievements, driving the
organization towards its objectives. The board's effectiveness in fulfiling its role cannot be
understated, as it has adeptly navigated challenges and harnessed opportunities to deliver positive
outcomes. By fostering a culture of transparency, accountability, and innovation, the board has
inspired all stakeholders and empowered the leadership team to work cohesively towards shared
goals. Their insightful guidance and prudent risk management have played a pivotal role in ensuring
the company's sustained growth and success in a competitive market landscape.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future of the tile industry in Pakistan, still represents a promising outlook due to the size of the
country’s construction sector and future housing demand. Advancements in technology and design
will play a pivotal role, allowing STCL to offer innovative and aesthetically pleasing tile solutions that
cater to evolving consumer preferences.

To thrive in this competitive landscape, your Company is looking to prioritize customer-centric
strategies, personalized services, and effective marketing techniques. By leveraging digital
platforms and e-commerce, the team is trying to tap into a wider customer base and stay relevant in
a rapidly evolving market.

Energy continues to be a paramount concern in Pakistan, as depleting indigenous natural gas
reserves pose a significant threat to the long-term sustainability of the industrial sector. The
uncertainty surrounding gas supply has led to disruptions in production schedules and increased
financial strain on the Company. Additionally, the expected rise in the gas tariff as part of the IMF
agreement would lead to potential loss of competitiveness in the market. To tackle this pressing
issue, a resolute commitment from the government is now more crucial than ever.

It is imperative for the government to devise a comprehensive policy aimed at harnessing the
potential of shale gas within the country. By tapping into these untapped resources, Pakistan can
reduce its dependency on dwindling natural gas reserves and secure a more stable and
self-sufficient energy future. Such a strategic move will not only bolster the industrial sector but also
contribute to overall economic growth and prosperity.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I am truly thankful for the unwavering leadership and determination demonstrated by every member
of our Company. | extend my heartfelt gratitude to the Board of Directors, Audit and Human
Resource and Remuneration Committees, our dedicated staff, reliable partners, and supportive
dealers for their collective efforts in surpassing expectations. It is through their hard work and
commitment that we have been able to achieve remarkable outcomes and move forward together
as a successful team.

Rafig M. Habib
Chairman

S
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the Annual Report of
the Company along with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT:

Throughout the year, the economic conditions in the country proved to be challenging. The value of
PKR declined, taxes rose, inflation soared, worker remittances dropped, global supply chains were
disrupted, interest rates increased, and the IMF program'’s resumption was delayed, all contributing
to a general economic slowdown. Persistent limitations on opening Letters of Credit (LCs) and
foreign payments remained in place. Resultantly, the construction sector experienced a notable
downturn confronting unparalleled obstacles and your Company also encountered substantial
challenges in its supply chain over the course of the year.

The significance of the construction industry in propelling a nation's economic advancement is
paramount. However, in contemporary times, Pakistan's construction sector has been facing a
significant hurdle — the impact of inflation and the rising costs of materials. Consequently, profitability
suffered as the task of re-evaluating product pricing became arduous amidst high inflation &
challenging market circumstances. Furthermore, higher construction material costs and inflationary
pressures resulted in project delays or even cancellations.

Despite these obstacles, the company managed to maintain sustainable operations and concluded
the fiscal year with a hard-earned achievement of surpassing the breakeven point.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

Below is a presentation of the Company's operating outcomes for the fiscal year ending on June 30,
2023, contrasted with the corresponding period from the previous year.

2023 2022

Rs. in ‘000
Turnover — net 14,182,479 11,898,966
Gross profit 2,987,080 2,994,999
Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation (EBITDA) 1,231,342 1,812,243
Depreciation 733,151 689,614
Finance cost 193,674 115,840
Profit before taxation 304,517 1,006,789
Profit after taxation 37,613 497,322
Earnings per share (Rs.) 0.16 2.08

TURNOVER:

The Company's revenue exhibited significant growth of 19%, attributed in part to ongoing endeavors
to transition towards higher-margin products and counteract the rise in production expenses. During
the fiscal year, the industry's market size experienced a substantial contraction. Nevertheless, the
Company leveraged its differentiated product portfolio in alignment with its strategic approach and
managed to maintain its sales volume, despite the suppressed market.

PRODUCTION:

In the face of demanding conditions marked by constrained access to imported raw materials due
to challenges in opening LCs, the back-end team adeptly maintained operational continuity. This
achievement stemmed from the Finance team's, proactive approach ensuring material arrangement
well in advance without significantly impacting the working capital cycle. Additionally, persistent
fluctuations in natural gas pressure persisted throughout the fiscal year, impacted supplies leading
to cost escalations. Nevertheless, production operations were planned and adapted to align with
customer preferences.

PROFITABILITY:

In the midst of a period of uncertainty and a demanding business environment in the current fiscal
year, the Company achieved a gross profit of Rs. 2,987 million, a slight decrease from Rs. 2,994
million in the previous year showing a decline in margins Selling and distribution costs surged by Rs.
527 million, primarily driven by higher outward freight expenses resulting from a significant upturn in
diesel prices. Administrative expenditures rose by Rs. 51 million, primarily due to the effects of
inflation, and the company was unable to fully pass on these increases through selling prices.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

Effective management of liquidity and cash flow is crucial for the financial health and stability of any
company. To ensure this, your Company has established a comprehensive cash flow forecasting
system that predicts inflows and outflows of cash over specific periods. Further, it is ensured that
optimal inventory levels are being maintained to prevent excess holding costs and free up cash for
other needs.

Effective controls on credit and securing advance payments have played a significant role in
managing the company's liquidity position. By efficiently managing these aspects, the company
ensured a steady cash flow, which is essential for its financial stability and growth. This approach to
cash management not only safeguarded the company against potential liquidity challenges but also
allowed it to capitalize on profitable investment opportunities.

COMMERCIAL STRATEGY

"STILE" has successfully established itself as a reputable brand in the market, renowned for its
superior ceramic and porcelain tiles catering to both small and large-scale projects. Operating
through our company-owned emporiums, we take pride in delivering high-quality products to our
valued customers. At our emporiums, we go beyond just selling tiles; we offer a distinctive and
personalized experience, providing exclusive products, top-notch design facilities, and excellent
after-sales services. Our vision is to propel the Stile brand to new heights, exemplifying innovative
designs and uncompromising craftsmanship. To achieve this, we recognize the utmost importance
of engaging directly with end consumers, as it fosters a positive brand image. We remain committed
to making constant efforts to maintain Stile's position as a premium brand in the industry.
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CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER:

Your company approximately contributed Rs. 3,064 million (2022: Rs. 2,829 million) into the
Government Treasury on account of income taxes, sales tax, custom duties and other government
levies, even in this environment where it made limited profit.

BUSINESS RISKS AND CHALLENGES

Pakistan’s construction sector has been grappling with a slowdown in activity. Economic difficulties,
including elevated inflation rates, volatile exchange rates, and political uncertainties, are significant
factors that have led to this sluggishness. Building materials, an integral component of the
construction industry, play a vital role not only in enhancing a nation's infrastructure and amenities,
thus elevating its overall standard of living, but also in contributing substantially to the country's GDP
growth.

Following are the major risks, which may affect our business operations:

«  Fluctuation / interruption in gas supply due to curtailment, gas reserve depletion

« Reuvision in gas allocation policy and increased gas tariff (comingled natural gas and RLNG)
exerting pressures on input cost

« Rising coal prices

«  Problems in establishing LCs affecting the production cycle

« High inflation resulting in sluggish secondary sales

- Devaluation of rupee.

«  Freight cost upsurge due to supply chain disruption, diesel prices.

- lrrational tax burden on compliant companies

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Throughout the years, your Company has played a substantial role in advancing the well-being of
society through a range of social initiatives. Guided by our CSR policy, the company places
particular emphasis on healthcare, the workplace, environmental stewardship, and broader societal
impact.

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT:

The Company consistently strives to establish a work environment that is both safe and secure for
its associates. Guided by fundamental safety principles, the Company aims to create a workplace
where individuals experience the satisfaction of working with a genuine sense of safety and security.
To this end, the Health & Safety Division has been instituted by the Company to proactively prevent
industrial accidents and their reoccurrence while also safeguarding the health of its associates.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company follows the practice of maintaining sufficient accounting records in line with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2017 and other relevant regulatory laws. This practice aims to
protect the company's assets, prevent and identify instances of fraud and other irregularities. The
Company also focuses on selecting and employing suitable accounting policies, making sound and
cautious judgments and estimates. Moreover, the Company is dedicated to devising, implementing,
and sustaining effective internal financial controls that ensure the precision and comprehensiveness
of accounting records pertinent to preparing and presenting financial statements that accurately
portray a true and fair representation, devoid of significant misstatements due to fraud or error.

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to external professionals who possess the
requisite qualifications and experience for this role. These professionals are well-versed in the
Company's policies and procedures. Additionally, the Board has designated a Head of Internal
Audit, a qualified individual, as required under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance
Regulations) 2019, who reports functionally to the Chairman Audit Committee.

AUDITORS:

The present Auditors M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, are due to retire in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the company and being eligible, have offered themselves for
reappointment. Board Audit Committee and the Board, recognizing the good practice of audit firm’s
rotation, have recommended M/s. A.F.Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants for appointment as
external auditors for shareholders consideration and approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting for the year ending June 30, 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company Management is fully cognizant of its responsibility as recognized by the Companies
Act, 2017 provisions and Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The following comments are acknowledgement of Board’s
commitment to high standards of Corporate Governance and continuous improvement:

1) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

2) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company;

3) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

4) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of these financial statements;

5) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue with the objective to further
strengthen the controls and improve the system;

6) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern;

7) Asummary of key operating and financial data of the Company of the last six years is annexed
in the report on page No. 41.

8) There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as
detailed in the Regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

9) The Company operates a contributory provident fund scheme for all permanent employees.
The value of Provident Fund Investments as per the unaudited accounts of STCL Provident
Fund Trust for the year ended June 30, 2023 was Rs. 331.868 million (2022: Rs. 291.497
million):

10) There are no outstanding statutory payments due on account of taxes, levies and charges
except as those disclosed in these financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ITS COMMITTEES:

The Board:
The Board comprises of two independent Directors (including one female director), four
non-executive Directors and one executive Director.

During the year, five meetings of Board of Directors (BOD) were held. All the meetings were
held in Pakistan. The attendance and the composition of the Board of Directors are as follows:
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Name of Director Status No. of meetings attended
Mr. Rafig M. Habib Chairman 4
Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery Executive Director & CEO 5
Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasji Independent Director 5
Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia Non-Executive Director 4
Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Independent Director 5
Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney Non-Executive Director 5
Mr. Imran Ali Habib Non-Executive Director 5

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board meetings.
Board Audit Committee:

The Board's Audit Committee plays a pivotal role in aiding the Board to meet its oversight
responsibilities. This includes the review and communication of financial and non-financial
information to shareholders, evaluating internal control systems and risk management practices,
and overseeing the audit process. The Committee possesses the authority to request information
from management and to directly consult with external auditors or advisors when deemed
appropriate. The Chief Financial Officer is invited to participate in Board Audit Committee meetings
to present financial accounts. Subsequent to each meeting, the Committee's Chairman delivers a
report to the Board. The Committee consists of two non-executive director and two independent
directors, including one female director and the Chairman of the Committee is an independent
director.

During the year, four meetings of Board Audit Committee were held. The attendance and the
composition of the committee is as follows:

Name of Director Status No. of meetings attended
Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasji Independent Director 4
Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia Non-Executive Director 4
Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Independent Director 4
Mr. Imran Ali Habib Non-Executive Director 4

Human Resource And Remuneration Committee:

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee provides strategic guidance to the
management on human resource, review the annual performance evaluations, personnel policies,
and compensation & benefits for the associates.

During the year under review, one meetings of the HR&R Committee was held to discuss & approve
the matters falling under the terms of reference of the Committee. The attendance of the HR&R
Committee members was as follows:

Name of Director Status No. of meetings attended
Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasji Independent Director 1
Mr. Salman Burney Non-Executive Director 1
Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery Executive Director 1
Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Independent Director 1

DIVIDEND:

The Company has achieved the profit after tax but considering the current business environment, the
current political and economic uncertainties and the company’s liquidity position, the directors have not
recommended dividend payment.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING:

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2023 required under Section 227 (2)
() of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance, is annexed to this report.

The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses or minor
children did not carry out any trade in the shares of the Company during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place
between the end of the financial year and the date of the Report, except as disclosed in the financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The transactions between the related parties were carried out on the basis of arm’s length prices. The
Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained Act and Code. The
details of all related party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and upon its
recommendation the same were approved by the Board of Directors.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS:

In the dynamic business landscape of Pakistan, robust business continuity planning has emerged as
a critical facet for companies seeking to navigate through various challenges and uncertainties. A
well-structured business continuity plan is designed to ensure the organization's resilience in the face
of disruptions such as natural disasters, economic fluctuations, and unforeseen events.

As an integral component of the Business Continuity Plan, remote disaster recovery sites have been
effectively established to uphold backup server and data integrity should our primary server encounter
any complications. Additionally, the Company is actively pursuing cloud-based backups for better
control environment and manage costs more efficiently.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES:

In accordance with the mandates of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act of
2017, the Company's Board conducts a yearly comprehensive self-evaluation of its collective
performance along with that of its committees. This evaluation process is aimed at assessing the
Board's overall performance and efficacy, aligning it with the Company's set objectives. The evaluation
concentrates on key areas such as:



33 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

»  Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of the Company

e  Strategy formulation for sustainable operation

e Board's independence and

» Evaluation of Board’'s Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities
set out in respective terms of reference.

Each year, an evaluation questionnaire is prepared in accordance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and distributed to Directors for performance
assessment. The Company Secretary ensures the utmost confidentiality upon receiving the
completed questionnaires. These evaluations are subsequently analyzed to pinpoint areas
necessitating enhancement and to bring to light any divergent viewpoints. For the fiscal year
concluding on June 30, 2023, the overall performance and efficacy of the Board have been
appraised as 'Satisfactory'.

Review of CEQO’s Performance

The CEO's performance is subject to a formal appraisal using an evaluation system that
encompasses various aspects. This includes assessing the business's performance, the
achievement of objectives related to profitability, organizational development, succession planning,
and overall corporate success.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION:

In terms of requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (the Code), the Company has formulated a policy which deals with the remuneration of the
Directors. The system of remuneration for Directors is designed to enhance their motivation for
improved business performance, both over the short term and medium to long term with sustained
growth of corporate value. The Executive Director is paid monthly remuneration and benefits as
approved by the Directors, whereas the Company does not pay remuneration to Non-executive
Directors, except for meeting fee. For information on remuneration and fee of Directors & CEO,
please refer to notes to the Financial Statements.
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:

Looking ahead, we remain cautiously optimistic about the future. We will continue to prioritize product
innovation, customer satisfaction, and operational excellence. Our strategy includes exploring
international markets and diversifying our product portfolio. We also aim to leverage digital platforms
and e-commerce to enhance our reach and customer engagement.

The Company's unwavering dedication to excellence and customer satisfaction has remained
steadfast. Even in these challenging times, our customers' unwavering trust continues to serve as a
driving force, propelling us forward.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT:

The Chairman’s review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the performance of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 and the future outlook. The directors endorse the contents
of the Chairman’s review report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors of our Company extends their heartfelt gratitude and recognition for the
remarkable dedication and contributions of all our employees. We also extend our thanks to our valued
bankers, vendors, dealers, architects, and shareholders for their consistent trust and confidence in our
Company.

On behalf of the Board

b AL Notze- e T Comy

SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi: September 12, 2023
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PERFORMANCE OF LAST SIX YEARS

30TH JUNE 30TH JUNE 30TH JUNE 30TH JUNE 30TH JUNE 30TH JUNE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
(Rs. in '000)
Turnover - net 14,182,479 11,898,966 9,904,498 6,474,469 6,933,077 5,767,082
% of Growth 19.19% 20.14% 52.98% -6.61% 20.22% 14.88%
Gross profit 2,987,080 2,994,999 3,060,227 1,096,746 1,611,867 1,257,217
Gross profit (%) 21.06% 25.17% 30.90% 16.94% 23.25% 21.80%
Selling and distribution Costs 2,129,448 1,602,220 1,394,662 1,036,180 927,447 748,488
% of Turnover -net 15.01% 13.47% 14.08% 16.00% 13.38% 12.98%
Administrative Expenses 386,691 335,856 289,144 255,767 250,660 157,764
% of Turnover -net 2.73% 2.82% 2.92% 3.95% 3.62% 2.74%
(Reversal) / Allowance for expected credit loss (5,168) 19,546 (18,731) 37,093 7,259 20,364
% of Turnover -net -0.04% 0.16% -0.19% 0.57% 0.10% 0.35%
Finance Cost 193,674 115,840 107,444 87,078 86,946 98,121
% of Turnover -net 1.37% 0.97% 1.08% 1.34% 1.25% 1.70%
Profit / (loss) before taxation 304,517 1,006,789 1,449,742 (280,817) 372,504 247,183
% of Turnover -net 2.15% 8.46% 14.64% -4.34% 5.37% 4.29%
Profit / (loss) after taxation 37,613 497,322 924,888 (325,774) 234,341 194,406
% of Turnover -net 0.27% 4.18% 9.34% -5.03% 3.38% 3.37%
EBITDA 1,231,342 1,812,243 2,267,720 512,598 1,053,005 740,314
% of Turnover -net 8.68% 15.23% 22.90% 7.92% 15.19% 12.84%
Cash dividend - 179,490 299,150 - 59,830 119,660
Cash dividend (% ) 15.00% 25.00% - 5.00% 10.00%
Ratio Analysis
Break-up value of Rs. 5/= share 11.28 11.88 11.05 7.18 8.79 8.32
Earnings / (loss) per share (Rs.) 0.16 2.08 3.86 (1.36) 0.98 0.81
Receivables no. of days 12 9 12 20 13 20
Current ratio 0.97 0.98 1.20 0.77 0.86 0.85
Number of employees (Permanent) 730 745 742 766 869 888

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rs. in Million
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Contribution to National Exchequer
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2023 % 2022 % 2021 % 2020 % 2019 % 2018 % STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2023 % 2022 % 2021 % 2020 % 2019 % 2018 %
Property , plant & Equipment 3,342,400 37.8 3,418,756 45.2 2,696,148 38.4 2,672,266 49.6 3,116,316 55.8 3,375,273 61.6 Property , plant & Equipment 3,342,400 (2.2) 3,418,756 26.8 2,696,148 0.9 2,672,266 (14.2) 3,116,316 (7.7) 3,375,273 18.8
Right of use assets 327,200 3.7 263,363 35 240,668 3.4 267,718 5.0 Right of use assets 327,200 24.2 263,363 9.4 240,668 (10.1) 267,718 - -
Investment properties 4,551 0.1 5,793 0.1 7,035 0.1 8,277 0.2 9,519 0.2 10,761 0.2 Investment properties 4,551 (21.4) 5,793 (17.7) 7,035 (15.0) 8,277 (13.0) 9,519 (11.5) 10,761 (10.3)
Long-term loans, advances & deposits 31,817 0.4 32,149 0.4 27,375 0.4 23,070 0.4 20,312 0.4 14,242 0.3 Long-term loans, advances & deposits 31,817 (1.0) 32,149 17.4 27,375 18.7 23,070 13.6 20,312 42.6 14,242 92.8
Deferred Tax Asset - Net 41,089 0.5 Deferred Tax Asset - Net 41,089
Current assets 5,105,121 57.7 3,841,509 50.8 4,052,399 57.7 2,417,550 44.9 2,440,767 43.7 2,076,768 37.9 Current assets 5,105,121 32,9 3,841,509 (5.2) 4,052,399 67.6 2,417,550 (1.0) 2,440,767 175 2,076,768 (14.2)
Total Assets 8,852,178 100.0 7,561,570 100.0 7,023,625 100.0 5,388,881 100.0 5,586,914 100.0 5,477,044 100.0 Total Assets 8,852,178 17.1 7,561,570 7.7 7,023,625 30.3 5,388,881 (3.5) 5,586,914 2.0 5,477,044 37
Share Capital 1,196,600 13.5 1,196,600 15.8 1,196,600 17.0 1,196,600 222 1,196,600 21.4 1,196,601 21.8 Share Capital 1,196,600 - 1,196,600 - 1,196,600 - 1,196,600 - 1,196,600 - 1,196,601 -
Share Premium 449,215 5.1 449,215 5.9 449,215 6.4 449,215 8.3 449,215 8.0 449,215 8.2 Share Premium 449,215 - 449,215 - 449,215 - 449,215 - 449,215 - 449,215 -
Reserves 1,054,416 11.9 1,196,293 15.8 998,121 14.2 73,233 1.4 458,837 8.2 344,156 6.3 Reserves 1,054,416 (11.9) 1,196,293 19.9 998,121 1,262.9 73,233 (84.0) 458,837 33.3 344,156 129.8
Shareholders' equity 2,700,231 30.5 2,842,108 37.6 2,643,936 37.6 1,719,048 31.9 2,104,652 37.7 1,989,972 36.3 Shareholders' equity 2,700,231 (5.0) 2,842,108 7.5 2,643,936 53.8 1,719,048 (18.3) 2,104,652 5.8 1,989,972 10.8
Long Term Financing - Secured 536,712 6.1 223,825 3.0 149,670 2.1 209,300 3.9 449,100 8.0 905,219 16.5 Long Term Financing - Secured 536,712 139.8 223,825 49.5 149,670 (28.5) 209,300 (53.4) 449,100 (50.4) 905,219 141.4
Lease liabilities 224,112 25 198,725 2.6 173,289 25 198,284 3.7 - - - - Lease liabilities 224,112 12.8 198,725 14.7 173,289 (12.6) 198,284 - -
Deferred tax liability - net - - 34,733 0.5 54,157 0.8 132,511 2.5 200,013 3.6 138,287 2.5 Deferred tax liability - net - - 34,733 (35.9) 54,157 (59.1) 132,511 (33.7) 200,013 44.6 138,287 61.7
Other long term liability 124,092 1.4 374,940 4.9 608,130 8.6 Other long term liability 124,092 (66.9) 374,940 (38.3) 608,130 -
Current liabilities 5,267,031 59.5 3,887,239 51.4 3,394,443 48.3 3,129,738 58.0 2,833,149 50.7 2,443,566 44.6 Current liabilities 5,267,031 355 3,887,239 145 3,394,443 8.5 3,129,738 105 2,833,149 15.9 2,443,566 (19.2)
Total Equities and Liabillities 8,852,178 100.0 7,561,570 100.0 7,023,625 100.0 5,388,881 100.0 5,586,914 100.0 5,477,044 100.0 Total Equities and Liabillities 8,852,178 17.1 7,561,570 7.7 7,023,625 30.3 5,388,881 (3.5) 5,586,914 2.0 5,477,044 37
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Turnover - net 14,182,479 100.0 11,898,966 100.0 9,904,498 100.0 6,474,469 100.0 6,933,077 100.0 5,767,082 100.0 Turnover - net 14,182,479 19.2 11,898,966 20.1 9,904,498 53.0 6,474,469 (6.6) 6,933,077 20.2 5,767,082 14.9
Cost of Sales (11,195,399) (78.9) (8,903,967) (74.8) (6,844,271) (69.1) (5,377,723) (83.1) (5,321,210) (76.8)  (4,509,865) (78.2) Cost of Sales (11,195,399) 25.7 (8,903,967) 30.1 (6,844,271) 273 (5,377,723) 1.1 (5,321,210) 18.0 (4,509,865) 0.6
Gross profit 2,987,080 211 2,994,999 25.2 3,060,227 30.9 1,096,746 16.9 1,611,867 23.2 1,257,217 21.8 Gross profit 2,987,080 (0.3) 2,994,999 (2.1) 3,060,227 179.0 1,096,746 (32.0) 1,611,867 28.2 1,257,217 135.0
Selling and distribution Costs (2,129,448) (15.0) (1,602,220) (13.5) (1,394,662) (14.1)  (1,036,180) (16.0)  (927,447) (13.4) (748,488) (13.0) Selling and distribution Costs (2,129,448) 32.9 (1,602,220) 14.9 (1,394,662) 346 (1,036,180) 117 (927,447) 23.9 (748,488) 455
Administrative Expenses (386,691) (2.7)  (335,856) (2.8) (289,144) (2.9) (255,767) (4.0) (250,660) (3.6) (157,764) (2.7) Administrative Expenses (386,691) 151 (335,856) 16.2 (289,144) 13.0 (255,767) 2.0 (250,660) 58.9 (157,764) 42.3
Reversal / (Allowance) for expected credit loss 5,168 0.04 (19,546) (0.2) 18,731 0.2 (37,093) (0.6) (7,259) (0.1) (20,364) (0.4) Reversal / (Allowance) for expected credit loss 5168 (126.4) (19,546) 204.4 18,731  (150.5) (37,093) 411.0 (7,259) (64.4) (20,364) (54.4)
Other Income 172,139 1.2 181,188 15 299,663 3.0 43,899 0.7 66,017 1.0 35,603 0.6 Other Income 172,139 (5.0 181,188 (39.5) 299,663 582.6 43,899 (33.5) 66,017 85.4 35,603 (7.7)
Operating Profit / (Loss) 648,248 46 1,218,565 10.2 1,694,815 17.1 (188,395) (2.9) 492,518 7.1 366,204 6.3 Operating Profit / (Loss) 648,248 (46.8) 1,218,565 (28.1) 1,694,815 999.6 (188,395)  (138.3) 492,518 345 366,204 480.1
Finance costs (193,674) (1.4) (115,840) (1.0 (107,444) (1.1) (87,078) (1.3) (86,946) (1.3) (98,121) 1.7) Finance costs (193,674) 67.2 (115,840) 7.8 (107,444) 234 (87,078) 0.2 (86,946) (11.4) (98,121) 5.0
Other expenses (150,057) (1.1) (95,936) 0.8) (137,629) (1.4) (5,344) 0.1) (33,068) (0.5) (20,900) (0.4) Other expenses (150,057) 56.4 (95,936) (30.3) (137,629) 2,475.4 (5,344) (83.8) (33,068) 58.2 (20,900)
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 304,517 2.1 1,006,789 8.5 1,449,742 14.6 (280,817) (4.3) 372,504 5.4 247,183 4.3 Profit / (Loss) before taxation 304,517 (69.8) 1,006,789 (30.6) 1,449,742 616.3 (280,817) (175.4) 372,504 50.7 247,183 230.3
Taxation (266,904) (1.9) (509,467) (4.3) (524,854) (5.3) (44,957) (0.7)  (138,163) (2.0) (52,777) 0.9) Taxation (266,904) (47.6)  (509,467) (2.9) (524,854) 1,067.5 (44,957) (67.5) (138,163) 161.8 (52,777) 237.8

Profit / (Loss) after taxation 37,613 0.3 497,322 4.2 924,888 9.3 (325,774) (5.0) 234,341 3.4 194,406 3.4 Profit / (Loss) after taxation 37,613 (92.4) 497,322 (46.2) 924,888 383.9 (325,774)  (239.0) 234,341 20.5 194,406 228.3
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INDEPENDENT AUDNTOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limlted (the Company)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained In Listed
Campanies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have raviewsd the enclused Statemeqt of Comphance with the Listed Companigs (Code of
Coiparate Gavernance) Requlacions, 2019 {the Reguilatians) pregared by the Baard of Directars
of Shabilr Tiles & Ceramics Limlied {or the year endec 30 June 2023 In accordancs with tha
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regu alions,

50l thea
the status of

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Regulations requlre the Compzny ta place before the Audit Lommittee,
rnrnendation of the Audit Committea, place berfore the Beard &f Di e
[, b5 ralatea party eransactions, We ars only requirsd and
nent ta the extent nf the apprnval of the related parly irersactivng by the
[urectors upnn recammeandation ol by Sadip Commitbes.

Baz=d cn our raviaw. nathing bhas come b eur atternacn wh ch LeL us to be 1eve thal the

Alth the requiramants conjained in the Regulations gs applicable te Lha Compary 160 Lhea
year ended 20 Jung J033.

C Hﬁﬂ‘-'fd RL-L

dcopuntants

Flace: Karachi
Date et bar 27
ICHN: c231al20
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9. All the directors on the board have either acquired training program or are exempt from the requirement.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH

LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 11, t(.;,]t;i%f c;‘i;z\lr:cial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of
SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

10. The Board has approved change in remuneration of Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit. The
Board has complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

- Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasji Chairman
- Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia Member
- Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Member
- Mr. Imran Ali Habib Member

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following: b) H.R. and Remuneration Committee

a Male: - 06 - Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawas;ji Chairman
b Eemale: _01 - Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney Member
- Mr. Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery Member
- Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Member

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the

a) Independent Directors * ) ) )
committee for compliance;

(including a female director)

- Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasiji
- Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan

b) Other Non-executive Directors 14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

- Mr. Rafig M. Habib
- Mr. Muhammad Salman Burney
- Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia

- Mr. Imran Ali Habib

a) Audit Committee -
b) HR and Remuneration Committee -

Four quarterly meetings
One meeting

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited who
are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company;

c) Executive Director - Mr. Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery
* In a board comprising of 7 members, one third works out to be 2.33 in which fraction is below half (i.e. 0.5).
The fraction contained in such one-third is not rounded up to one. Company has qualified and experienced

independent directors on the board who perform and carry out their responsibility diligently. 16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under

the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative
(Spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company;

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard,;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by complied with

the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

SYED MASOOQOD ABBAS JAFFERY RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations;

Dated: September 12, 2023



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS




53 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

=F2 "% & T EUYNH

B W A Cidaast

o= | e Pluia Bag - F
JBoe 15541 hy
izlam

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Shabblr Tiles & Ceramlcs Limited
Report an the Audit af the Financial Statements
pinion

wa haes augitad th2 augnesed fipancla slalerments ot Shabblr THes 8 Ceramics Limited {"he Compa =yl
which ¢ onprisg the statement of finanoal positlon as at 3G June 2023, and (b2 slaternent of proft ar oss,
the szaternens al compreher sive [acome, the statement of changes in azuily and The slaloment of Cass flows
‘o1 Lhe yzar Uen snded, and pobes to the linancig slatamenss nclazing a summary SF sigeitc ant acceant ng
acncias and Sther seplanda ey -nfonation, and wa stale at we haos obtained all the informatioo and

A ations aheek, Letne oes) of ow konwladye and belied, were néoessary 1or The purpeses of b aucit.

InaLr cwinat ared 1o tha best of owr infermabian and accarding Lo bne erplanatians given be us, the
stetament o “indacia posilicn, Ene statement ol profit orilose. len statement ol comprenensiy incama, the
slatemen of changes in equ te and the staterpent of cash Bows {ogether will the notas forming part
Mherecl zosbasm with tha acraunting and repc-fieg shanda-ds as apphcable in Pakistan and giva the
parmation required by tha Campanies 2ok, 201 TORIK a8 2017 inihe manner <a regaised and respectivaly
give 3 True gl Fair view 2° he slate of 1= Company's aFai-s a3 28 20 June 2027 and of Lhe grafil, uthar
corp chensise incoma, [he changes in equaity and its rach Mows for the year then tnded.

Basis for Qpinion

Ws cangucted our 2udil in accurdance with ternabional Standards o &od Hing (15as) as app.catla i
Pabizlan, Dur responsibicizies gnde - those standards are further descnbed in Ehe Audiar's Responsioditic for
Mg Awdil of rne Figance Stadements sechon o cur reperh, We are ndepencent o she Company in
acinrdange wilh e arlernatieoal BEtRics Standands Board for accounlants’ Code of Enies Ior Arafessionar
Arccopratants 35 acooptoeg ov [ne Instilule of Chaltered Acccuntants o Pskistar (ths Codeland we ave
Tul'nled nur ciler ebhical responsibilitles in aicardance weth bhe Code, We beleve that fne gaadil @@3ence wie
Favs obiainad "y sitlcierl qnd sppropnzte o pocesde & Ba<is For guwr opimnidn

Kay audit Matlers
Aoy AUsit maktars are thopse mattars that, -n our prefessiona judgment, wers ol most signilicance in our
aodit <f tha i~ ancia, statzments of the carrsnt pariad. These maliers were godrassed 0 bha comlest of our

audit of the finandcizl staterments 35 a whale, andin arering aUe aminton Thereon, and we denot piovide a
separdte odnicen o these matters. , .P
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Foltpwing are 1he key sodil mat lers:
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‘5. Na.

Key audit matter

Howmrmitgdg” ressed the key.

audit matter

1.

valuatlan of stock-In-trade

[(Refar rote 13 Ly e arcoir panying * nancial
[statements)

[The stopk-i--trada balznoe coastitules
[appromimnately 2:3% af total assets of the Conrpany
as at “he “epariing date, “his comprises rze and
1ack'ng makarial, wor k- pess WP, Tinished
goads and sTock-intransit.

Stock-in-trans iz waluec al the lowe of €051 and
el real 7a%le walue CHIEYS. HRY 15 dete-mined
malnay keeping i ecew the ealimatsr 52 hno ooice
|- the cid nary conese af Dunieess ess Ee
pstimatss costs af complebion angd 1ho fsiomabed
lcosts necassary —b make 1he sale,

(We hawe consider ed [Fis arca (o D2 4 key 20
mattzr due ta iss rizterialily sl judgerents
lirrealped in estlnating rhe LAY pf usderlyi-o
stech-in-trede.

Cur key audiz procedures arneng okhers ieclodes The
Foll powim:

aptained an understancing of the Compsny's
pracess with respect fo purchaze and
congrnphio &F raw and packing matarial, Alsa
1ested dezign and operaling eFecliveness of
contrgls rel@want Lo such nrocess.

Rev ewed mandgement's proceduras 1ar
wedlualing 1hie MW of sback Toirade. perfo: ned
Easting cn sdmpee oa5is Lo asiess e 39 ard
evaluated the adeguacy of write down of stock-
In-trade to MRY by pe-forming a revise o! =zale:
¢loze to and subsequent to the year-anz and
campanng with the cost for 3 sample of

produ L.

Testes the aceuracy o1 ageing aralesis of s1eok:
in-trada, on a sample basis, be evaluatz p-ov'sion
tor slow meyving stock-in-trade assessad by the
nanagement,

Acgpiged the appropnztensss of managenent's
buasis [ar the allccation oF foal and preauct on
ot gy dwid Laslad The Zalculafiens ol per g
cost of finiched goods, on a sampla basiy,

R e el relesanl docung iEs, incading bat nof
limited la swpplier’s fvoices, oklers of credils
and =nipping socuments 1o wer fy the valuation
i stach-ivtransit ac at the reporting dale a5
verll as ing poectod Sy bsequent Qoods rereIpt nots,
oM @ LAME D505

dscpssed b e aueguacy o relaled financial
statemnent disclosuras in dccordance with the

Applicable financal repi-7ing trar Pwark.,

At
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

,5. Mo. | Key audit matter
2.

gsd sclused nrote 7.1 and 7.5 t0 the | Qur key andit proceduw 05 amang oth=rs incluaey the
gocoripanrpirg Tinancial stafemients. the Company | following:

ne.rred 5 guilicant amauct of capital . . . - "
.gn.|..1|.=n-.:|t.1r5 i.n.:lu?ing I:'_-.’-piTali_E.tinn _|:|ur|“|;| Lh Eh-:::;:i:tlh L,'g';g;ﬂﬂg%,ﬁ;";fpiﬂi'fﬂfg *
yer fl_*l-:?ul'!h!jfj t=Rs. 341 772 -1 llian and R, including Aeterminalicn af useful Ives ans *ested
Q3G TG inillion, respeclivaly, desion and cperating eifecliztness of controls
re evant 1o such procass.,

Capital expenditure and related transfers

This rapresents a significant lransartizn for 1he

23" and in- 5 = ' ogeallghan of .
i ﬂimmwl:?b-“ﬁg?: :Trilta:i:ej ilﬁp PUE |« Reviewed whelner the camponents of £os°
=R 3 e Chnl -4k rapitalizad meoy the recognit on criteria of an

o wilh appri ik jal sin . . .
?h.:'?:.uagrcf ;”lrl:nlfrﬂdmlan:;if:\a?:jﬂan; EI;IEL t};—,iqn asset, in accordande with the apelicab:e tinanc al
rarizm urth=r delar ; a ~epurting 5tatdards.

of wren assels are aeailable Tor use, boeir useful
lives and residual values invalves critival + Perlormed substantive guldil procetduras
aseasEmente. including phgslcal werificalion, v a sampe oasis,
e . . - a° “ited assats acguired, assessmsnt o nature o
B e ovouat | 71 Spiazed i st of amcurs
i ) - 1 eyicw o° related third-party inwoices. conbyacts,
: dalivery sofes. lether of credils and snipning

dazument s,

«  Revigwdd timing of capitdlization by sxamining,
on a sarmple pasis. the cameletior § Lranstar
rertificates froe Fhe Company s bechinical
Uepertmeant.

¢ Rewewed menageimenl's eshimates aboud 1he
wsefal ite of ARsels =o cagita lzed and
consaquert depreciafion rates used by the
CRmpan.

= Arseniosd 1he pdequacy of ralabed lingngial

stazement disclasures in accordance with 1he
applicasle finansial répartmg framsvark,

informaton ot her than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Repart Therean

Managemnent 15 ressonsibie for e other informatien The cther infcomation comprises bae inlarmabon
in (e i Fhz Arewdl Repoet But does ot Inglude 1ha finaroal statemenis and our audicar's report theeon,

Cur e pinion on the Tlisangi2)l sksbemanks dors nokb cover the giher infarmation and we 9 oot exprass any form
Cl gesurance Conclesion LForear.

In comnex Lo with oug sudit ¢l Lhe finanoial staterents, our respensibility 5 0o read the olte infermatlon and,
hEping =3, cansuler wepthar L olhes Intormalicn s rgtenally incunsistent with tre financial statements ar
s ancwlecge obla ned 10 the audt of o herwise ppades 1o he materially musstased. 1°, bazed on (e werk we
hawe pertormed, wie cuacidee that the s is 2 mater:al misslatemant of this ot infermation, we 25¢ reguirad
ta 1epart that fac?. We haes nothing ko cegsrt n thic ragard

Responcibihties of Management and Board of Directors Tor the Financial S1atements

Mar agement iv espangiole for Lhe preparation and 1ar presaniaticn of the financial sEatements in
acren Fanne et B acgcunthng ens repsrhing standacds és apphozble in Pakistan and the requicerents of
Campanids &0, 3507 (61K 03 01T and for sacm inkarral corkral 35 mara ge nent detarmings is nefessary o

arzble Llhe prazaration of linanclal statenes-ts hat ara fres ‘rom mztanal misslaiement, whaiha” Jue 7o

fra.d o wiror, "?I-;.

R MLTIRT TERTE R Pags 3
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EHERRPH] B [HITERT
wrhing warkd

I g1 opén iy Fhs financial stk omerts, managsmenl is respnrsible for asseseing [Fe Sompany's ao ity <o
cont nue % a 3aing concern. disclasing. a5 appiicacle, matters related bo geing concern and wsing ths geag
corcsrn basis of agcounting unlass maragement erther ‘nlands So luidate the Company or o ceaze
nparabions, ¢ has oo reahstlc ikessative byt to do s0.

Eowred o dirgctors are regpesibla Far avarges ng the Cnmoany'e firancial resorting proesass,

Auditor's Responsibllities tar the 4 udit of the Financlal Statemants

Ciur abpactwes are 70 ohiain resscisble assaranc2 sboul wretser the tinancial staterneals 85 2 whole are froe
e malenal misslalemert, whather due Lo frapd ar erccr, oad to 15568 ar daditar's “esart that e cindes cur
azinivn Erascnable assuranis 15 a mgh leval of asserance. but i= nut 3 goarantea tnat an aadil conducted in
acco-dansy wath 5AE as applicahle in Fak stan will always detect 3 mate "al risztatement when il @xists,
M:s=latarmonts Cam ariza Froem fragg o error ans are <orsidered materigl il ndeid slle asin Ehe agar egate.
thesy could regsonalily be sxpected be sty ence the acosormic dacisions af wsers Liken on the basis of 1hawe
financial statzmerls,

an osyl ol 20 audit i accordance vath 15 A5 =5 dpphcahle in Pakistan, we clerclae prolessicngl jedgment and
mdirtai- pretessinnal skeplicizim threoaghoot the aud 1. We als o

¢ ldentify a1d assess the nsss of material nesstaternant of B financial staterenls, woether due o
Iraud v errar, desian and pecferm audit procedures responsive to bhose risks, and cbtain auor
eviderce Lhal is sulf.cient and approprnste To pravids & bas s ‘or cor cpinion. The risk of not
detas;ing a matarial misstatemant reswting from fraud iz Figher than for one result’ng Tram oregr, as
fraud may reciva collug o, torgery, inter isnal omissons, misiep esetatlong, ar the cvsride of
ird e mal Goentral,

»  Dstaic un underatanding of internal rantne relevarl B 10g audis inorder 1o deslge aydlt procedures that
arz azpiopriale in bhe circumebances, sub nct fo- e pos20se Of exprassing an Spividn on fhe
Fi*antivenass of Lhe Conpany's inlernal ceabl.

a  Evalua‘e the opprogniatecess of accaog~ting policizs uzed g e repsanablenass el aczaurthing
a2xhimates and (#lated dlsc ozures mode by management.

« Cong ude cr {hé appropristenass ol maragernert’s usa cf tP e anng cencern basis ol acccunting and,
hased on tha augit cwidence cbialr ed, wacthads g material uncertairty exlsts rakatsd to gvasls <
conhteans thet may Last sgaitizan: doubd cn tPe Sompsny's abilily e continug a5 a goirg coneern 1
wi < el g that a maksial g-eariainty 2xists, we aoe regarad bagraw atleslion [~ cor aad tor's ~epoal
L ihe relstad disclosoes in b hinancial statenments or, iF such disclosurg s are inadequate, te mocify
au' upinicn, Cur cenclusicng are Basad an ths audit evidense nbtained up ba Lhe date of cur auditer's
repart, Joweyor, IToee eveats of condiTIgns may casw s the Comgzne bo cease 1o Continwe a5 A gong

CUNCErn.

*  Euzluzte the overall presentation, struciure znd contenl of the lnangial stalemenls, induding the
Jdisrlnsures, a-d wi-ebher tha fingacal stalemants represent the undedying tranzactions and ¢e¢nts.n a
mar - er B 3Eachievas Tair posetatior.

W Lenamicate wizh She board of direczors 14ga-ding, smong otk albess, the glanned scope and Lining ot
bhe aurht and signi‘icant ancl find-ngs. i Cuding any sigmif cenl deticiencles in inlernal conlro: that we
idenlily Jdi.1 ng our aodit,

We also prowde 1he hoard of disectars with a statement that we hava coneplivd with relevant ezhical 1ayuirernits
regarding indeperadence, and te comenur cate witk then all vaationshlps and clher imatters that may cagsonals s
ke [Ronght 1o besr an oW indepandasce, and whers applicat: e, elabed saleCuaros.

“fir
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EY

Hunkdmg o badiler

v i g werd
From Lthe imalters rammunicated wits he Boarg af direckars, we delarrming thgse makfers tnat weare of 0oy
signi‘icance w b aud b of the financial slotements of the current period asd are tharetore the key audit
mAatters. ws describs those matters noour aud’bor's (eport Unless [aw ar ragulatios pres ades ool
far losuse sboud the matler ar whes, 1o estremely rare circumnstar2es, we cetarmi-e 1hat a matber should not
L communizated in our réport Becansn the aivarse consequences of Joing s0 wiuln reasonably be 2xpar tad 1o
. hwaic b bz public inberest bennfts of such conmunicabion

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirernents
Buaserd wr our 2udiz, wea furthe vepert Lhas imocur opinlan:

a1 araper books of gocaunt have been k2pt by bhe Sampany 3s required by the Companias Acl, 2017
CEIE ol P07,

h: the s:ztemerd of linandial position. the stalumont of groht or loss, the slater ons ol Somprehensive
ncome, tha statzmest of changas in equily and the statem=nt ol cash lows logelher with the naras
tharear have bean drawn pp in ronfermity with b Cormpanias act, 2010 T 6l of 20171 and aren
Agrseriant with the books 0 ancannt and retu-ns;

£) o messtmenls made, exgenditure nowsred and guarantees sxbendad during the yea- were 2ar the
aurpaze af the Company's Dasiness; and

di zxakst deduckible 3t source under e Zakat gnd Ushr Ordinance, 19840 GOV ot 1980, was
decucied by Lhe Somfany and daposited in Ehe Cembral 2akat Fund established ender sootian 7
af that (ird nsnce.

T re angagenenl pactner on tre audil resulling in fRis independent aadito-'s (eport is Qmer Chughtal,

&t B A

Charlered Agcountants

Flaca: Earazh

Dater 25 Septancsr 20213

LN ARZ02A101 20007 Fadpy
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
2023 2022
M Note . (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ 2023 2022
Note ... (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Eggﬁteg%ﬂugfgszg?seqU'pme“t g 3’2‘2151‘2%8 31‘2%2’;22 Turnover - net 28 14,182,479 11,898,966
Investment properties 9 4,551 5,793 Costof sales 29 (11,195,399) (8,903,967)
Long-term security deposits 10 31,817 32,149 :
Defgrred tax asse¥- ngt 11 41,089 - Gross profit 2,987,080 2,994,999
CURRENT ASSETS 3,741,057 3,720,061 Selling and distribution costs 30 (2,129,448) (1,602,220)
Stores and spare parts 12 728,936 540,930 Administrative expenses . sl (386,691) (335,856)
Stock-in-trade 13 2 058.968 1584510 Reversal / (allowance) for expected credit loss 14.3 5,168 (19,546)
Trade debts 14 411,969 175,043 (2,510,971) (1,957,622)
Loans and advances 15 46,530 50,847 _
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 16 116,773 15,308 Other income 32 172,139 181,188
Short-term investments 17 1,337,306 1,348,374
Cash and bank balances 18 404,639 126,497 Operating profit 648,248 1,218,565
5,105,121 3,841,509
8,852,178 7,561,570 Finance costs 33 (193,674) (115,840)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Other expenses 34 (150,057) (95,936)
(343,731) (211,776)
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital Profit before taxation 304,517 1,006,789
240,000,000 (2022:240,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.5/- each 1,200,000 1,200,000
Taxation 35 (266,904) (509,467)
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 19 1,196,600 1,196,600
Reserves 1,503,631 1,645,508 Profit after taxation 37,613 497,322
2,700,231 2,842,108
------------ Rupees ------------
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 36 0.16 2.08
Long-term financing - secured 20 536,712 223,825
Deferred Income 21 77,094 58,271
Lease liabilities 22 224,112 198,725 The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable 23 46,998 316,669
Deferred tax liability - net 11 - 34.733
884,916 832,223
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 24 3,682,665 2,549,399
Unclaimed dividend 25 4,184 3,963
Unpaid dividend 25 2,761 2,258
Current maturity of long-term financing 20 22,820 8,712
Current maturity of deferred income 21 5,494 5,494
Current maturity of lease liabilities 22 156,112 111,355
Current maturity of GIDC payable 23 767,915 463,229
Accrued Markup 20,334 -
Taxation - net 258,592 354,403
Sales tax payable 26 346,154 388,426
5,267,031 3,887,239
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27
8,852,178 7,561,570
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
L] & ] -
Jut§ IS b\ Nobez- J4. 0 sy Jutn§ I b\ Nobez- 143 Gy
MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWAS.JI MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWAS.JI
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
37,613 497,322
37,613 497,322
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The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

Reserves
Capital
reserve Revenue reserves
Issued, (Accumulated
subscribed loss) /
and paid-up Share General unappropriaed Total
capital premium reserve profit reserves  Total equity
(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at June 30, 2021 1,196,600 449,215 478,000 520,121 1,447,336 2,643,936
Profit after taxation - - - 497,322 497,322 497,322
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 497,322 497,322 497,322
Final dividend @ 25% for the

year ended June 30, 2021 - - - (299,150) (299,150) (299,150)
Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,196,600 449,215 478,000 718,293 1,645,508 2,842,108
Profit after taxation - - - 37,613 37,613 37,613
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 37,613 37,613 37,613
Final dividend @ 15% for the

year ended June 30, 2022 - - - (179,490) (179,490) (179,490)
Balance as at June 30, 2023 1,196,600 449,215 478,000 576,416 1,503,631 2,700,231

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

LY
e T, G
e s b\ Moz Aty T Com
MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note - orrrreeees (Rupees in “000) ------------
Profit before taxation 304,517 1,006,789
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation on
- operating fixed assets 7.3 614,865 586,649
- right-of-use assets 8.3 117,044 101,723
- investment properties 9 1,242 1,242
Finance costs 33 193,674 115,840
Dividend income on mutual funds 32 (69,163) (81,679)
(Reversal)/Allowance for expected credit loss 14.3 (5,168) 19,546
Allowance for slow moving stores and spare parts 121 29,471 27,150
Allowance for slow moving stock-in-trade 13.2 11,022 2,368
Unrealized gain on short-term investments - mutual fund units 32 (788) (1,034)
Amortization of deferred income 32 (5,494) (2,195)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 32 (870) (3,011)
Gain on disposal of lease assets 32 - (5,608)
885,835 760,991
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,190,352 1,767,780
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spare parts (217,477) (90,223)
Stock-in-trade (485,480) (121,016)
Trade debts (231,758) 39,662
Loans and advances 4,317 (12,946)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (101,465) 87
(1,031,863) (184,436)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,133,265 346,145
Sales tax payable (42,272) (26,834)
1,090,993 319,311
Cash generated from operations 1,249,482 1,902,655
Income tax paid (438,537) (597,129)
Finance costs paid (117,104) (46,581)
Long-term loans - net - 350
Long-term security deposits - net 332 (5,124)
GIDC paid 23 - (71,178)
Net cash generated from operating activities 694,173 1,182,993
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (541,772) (1,347,785)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4,134 4,291
Short-term investments redeemed during the year - TDRs - 56,000
Short-term investments made during the year - mutual fund units (4,041,742) (3,639,475)
Short-term investments redeemed during the year - mutual fund units 3,906,148 3,780,088
Dividend on mutual funds received 69,163 81,679
Net cash used in investing activities (604,069) (1,065,202)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing obtained during the year 20.3 340,806 91,418
Repayment of long-term financing 20.3 (10,715) (9,624)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (110,737) (90,175)
Dividend paid 39 (178,766) (297,340)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 40,588 (305,721)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 130,692 (187,930)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 590,856 778,786
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37 721,548 590,856
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
a5 b AL Notza- 3y . Camy
: patal g
MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited
company, under the repealed Companies Act 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on November
7, 1978 and listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in
the manufacture and sale of tiles and trading of allied building products.

Geographical location and addresses of all the business units other than those stated in note 1.3
are as under:

Business Unit Address Production Facility
Registered office &

production plant (Unit 1):
Production plant (Unit 2):

15th Milestone, National Highway, Tiles & building
Landhi, Karachi. material products
Deh Khanto Tappo, Landhi, District Malir, Tiles

Bin Qasim Town Karachi.

Plot No. 01, ANF Road, Yamaha Chowk, Building material
Road, Model Town, Humak, Islamabad. products

78-A, Factory Adda, Dina Nath, Main Building material
Multan Road, 46 KM Road, Lahore. products

Production plant (Islamabad):

Production plant (Lahore):

The Company also make sales through various sales outlets located across the country.
Considering the quantum, the geographical locations and addresses of all the locations are not
presented in these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under Companies Act, 2017
(the Act) and, provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs and IFAS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act have been followed.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
otherwise specifically stated.

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani rupee, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

AMENDMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Amendments to approved accounting standards effective during the year

The company has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs for financial reporting which
became effective for the current year:
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4.2

Amendments to approved accounting standards

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments)

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments)
IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments to the approved accounting standards did not have any
material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standards, amendments or improvements:

Amendments Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)
IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments) January 01,2023
Practice
Statement 2
IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments January 01, 2023
IAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction (Amendments)" January 01, 2023
IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
(Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as current or non current
and non current Liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
(Amendments)
IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback January 01, 2024
(Amendments)
IFRS 7/1AS 7 Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements January 01, 2024
(Amendments)

IFRS 10/ IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture (Ammendments) Not yet finalised

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2018-2020 cycle)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '10 percent' test
for derecognition of financial liabilities

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements

IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives

The above amendments and improvements are not expected to have any material impact on the
Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.
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6.1.1

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan and are not expected to have any material impact
on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

Standard IASB effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judg-
ment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revi-
sions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, manage-
ment has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial state-
ments:

Notes

6.1.1,6.2,6.3, 7.1,
7.3,82&9

determining the method of depreciation, residual values and useful lives of
operating fixed assets, right-of-use assets and investment property
determining the provision for slow moving stores and spare parts and
stock-in-trade and adjustment of stock-in-trade to their net realizable value
(NRV) 6.6,6.7,12 & 13

determining the allowance for expected credit loss on trade debts 6.8&14
recognition of current and deferred taxation 6.14, 11 & 35
leases 6.13 & 22
contingent liabilities 6.17

gas infrastructure development cess (GIDC) payable 22

deferred income 6.12 & 21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any
except for freehold land, which are stated at cost less any impairment in value, if any.

Cost in relation to certain fixed assets, including capital work-in-progress, signifies historical cost
and financial charges on borrowings for financing the projects until such time as the projects are
substantially ready for their intended use.
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Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss on straight line basis, other than freehold land
which is determined to have an indefinite life, at the rates specified in note 7.1 to the financial
statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use
and on disposals upto the month immediately preceding the month of deletion.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each statement of financial position date, and adjusted
if expectations differ significantly from previous estimates which is applied prospectively in accordance
with IAS 8 (Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors).

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

An item of operating fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposals of operating fixed assets are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

6.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

6.2

6.3

These are stated at cost less any impairment in value. All expenditure connected with specific assets
incurred during installation and construction period including advances to suppliers and contractors are
carried under this head. These are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when these assets are
available for use.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received as applicable. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are
depreciated using straight line method over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to
impairment. The depreciation rates used are stated in note 8 to the financial statements.

Investment properties

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method at the rate
specified in note 9 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in
which an asset is available for use and on deletions up to the month immediately preceding the deletion.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major

renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. Gain or loss
on disposals is taken to the statement of profit or loss for the year.
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred, except for development costs that relate to design of new or improved products
which are recognised as an asset to the extent that it is expected that such asset will meet the
recognition criteria mentioned in International Accounting Standard (IAS)-38 "Intangible Assets".
Stores and spare parts

These are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items. The cost is determined
by the weighted moving average cost method except for those in transit or at bonded warehouse
which are valued at actual cost plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade, except stock in transit are valued at the lower of cost and NRV determined as follows:

Raw and packing material
Work-in-process and finished goods

weighted average cost.
cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads.

Stock in transit are valued at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.

Stock-in-trade is regularly reviewed by the management and slow moving items, if any, are brought
down to their NRV. NRYV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts, loans, deposits and long term security deposits

Trade debts and other financial assets are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less an allowance for expected credit
losses, if any. Allowance for expected credit losses is based on lifetime ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other financial assets. Bad
debts, if any, are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents
These are stated at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents

comprise of cash in hand, bank balances, treasury bills and term deposit receipts with maturity up to
three months recognised under short-term investments net of short-term running finance, if any.
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6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement
of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Deferred income

The benefit of a long-term finance at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred income,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates. The deferred income is held on the statement of financial position
as a deferred credit and realised to the profit or loss over the periods necessary to match the related
depreciation charges, or other expenses of the asset, as they are incurred.

Lease liabilities

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, i.e. if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the commencement date of the lease if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying
asset.
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6.13.1 Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on such leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

6.13.2 Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

6.14 Taxation
6.14.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax
rates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments for prior years or otherwise considered
necessary for such years, if any. Current tax is charged to the statement of profit or loss except to
the extent it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income in which case it is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

6.14.2 Deferred

Deferred taxation is provided, proportionate to local sales, on all temporary differences at the
statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible tempo-
rary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position
date.

6.15 Staff retirement benefit - Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a recognised provident fund for all eligible employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and the employees in accordance with the
rules of the scheme. The contributions from the Company are charged to the statement of profit or
loss for the year.

6.16 Employees' leave encashment

Accrual for leave encashment is made to the extent of value of encashable accrued leaves of the
employees at the statement of financial position date as per Company’s policy.

6.17 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when:
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company; or
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- there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliability.

6.18 Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Exchange differences on foreign
currency translations are taken to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they occur.

6.19 Financial Instruments
6.19.1 Financial assets

The financial assets of the company mainly include trade debts, loans, deposits, long-term security
deposits, short-term investment, other receivables and cash and bank balances.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) — debt investment; FVTOCI — equity investment;
or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics. Based on the business model of the Company, the financial assets of the
Company are measured and classified under IFRS 9 as follows;

Short-term investments in mutual fund units are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Trade
debts, short-term investments in TDRs / treasury bills and other financial assets are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less an allowance for expected credit losses,
if any.

Derecognition

A financial asset, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets is primarily
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement and either the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset or the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

6.19.2 Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial
liabilities are either classified at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss.The Company
does not have any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
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of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss. This category applies to long-term financing of the Company as
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

6.19.3 Impairment of financial assets

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by
the Company.

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the respective asset.

The Company uses the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life time ECL
on its financial assets. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Com-
pany’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the financial
assets and the economic environment.

6.19.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

6.20

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Unclaimed dividend

This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and unclaimed by shareholders from the date
it became due and payable.
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6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

Unpaid dividend

This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and claimed by shareholders but remained
unpaid for the period of 3 years from the date it became due and payable.

Operating segments

For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one reportable
operating segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the
nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure, and internal
financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these financial statements are
related to the Company’s only reportable segment.

Share capital and reserves

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Reserves comprise of capital and revenue reserves. Capital reserves represent share premium
while revenue reserves comprise of general reserves and unappropriated profit. The purpose of
general reserves includes, but not limited to, fulfilling various business needs like meeting contin-
gencies, offsetting future losses, enhancing the working capital, etc.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
assessed at each statement of financial position date to ascertain whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the
statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to
disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future
cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the assets.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when the control of the goods is transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods according to the negotiated contractual terms. The Company
has generally concluded that it acts as principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Performance obligations held by the Company are not separable, and are not partially satisfied,
since they are satisfied at a point in time, when the customer accepts the products. In most of the
cases, payments against the goods are realized in the month of delivery, without any variable
considerations, financing components and guarantees.

The Company recognizes an account receivable when the performance obligations have been met,
recognizing the corresponding revenue. Moreover, the considerations received before satisfying
the performance obligations are recognized as advances from customer.
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6.26

6.27

Return on bank deposits / saving accounts is recognised on accrual basis;

Rental income on investment property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term;
and

Return on short-term investments and other income if any is recognised on accrual basis.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.
Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

2023 2022
Note ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 7.1 2,743,070 2,390,644
Capital work-in-progress 7.4 599,330 1,028,112
3,342,400 3,418,756
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Cost as at
June 30,

Building on freehold land

Total area

Cost as at
June 30,

Freehold land

Particulars of immovable fixed assets:
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1,271,387
(701,509)
1,028,112

500,956
(929,738)
599,330

7.1

Transferred to operating fixed assets

Additions during the year
Balance at end of the year

Includes advance amounting to Rs. 12.814 million (2022: 4.744 million) to Indus Motor Company

Limited, a related party.

7.6

496,947
(233,584)
263,363

2022

--m-m---=-=- (RUpEES in ‘000) ------------

2023
610,311
(283,111)
327,200

Note
8.1
8.2

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Accumulated depreciation

Cost

8.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
9.1 The forced sales values and fair values of investment properties based on the latest valuation carried out
2023 2022 by an independent valuer on June 30, 2023, as at the statement of financial position date, are as under:
81 COST Note oo (Rupees in ‘000) ------------ Forced sale values Fair values
Balance at beginning of the year 496,947 407,394 2023 2022 2023 2022
Additions during the year 178,940 148,044 | ano
Disposals during the year (67,517) (61,923) (Ripees in 000)
Remeasurement of lease liabilities 1,941 3,432 Freehold land 7,702 6,906 9,628 8,632
Balance at end of the year 610,311 496,947 Building on freehold land 2,630 2,391 3,287 2,989
Showroom 3,500 4,368 5,000 5,460
8.2 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Apartments 5,600 5,280 7,000 6,600
19,432 18,945 24,915 23,681
Balance at beginning of the year 233,584 166,726
Charge for the year 8.3 117,044 101,723 9.2  Particulars of immovable investment properties:
On disposals during the year (67,517) (34,865)
Balance at end of the year 283,111 233,584 Particulars Location Total area / covered area
Depreciation rate % 11-67 11-67 Freehold land 15th Milestone, National Highway, 332 sq. yards
Landhi, Karachi.
8.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: Building on freehold land 15th Milestone, National Highway, 2,989 sq. ft.
Landhi, Karachi.
Cost of sales - manufacturing 29.1 22,841 31,965 Showroom Shop No. 11, Mezzanine Floor, Pace N 260 sq. ft.
Selling and distribution costs 30 94,203 69,758 Pace Mall, Bosan Road, Multan.
117,044 101,723 Apartments Flat No. 17 & 20, Fifth Floor, Bismillah 770 sq. ft. & 860 sq. ft.
Heights, Tando Wali Muhammad, Ward A,
9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Hyderabad.
NET BOOK
CosT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION _VALUE Note 2023 2022
As at As at Asat Chargefor As at As at  Depreciation 10. LONG-TERMLOANS 7 e (Rupees in “000) ------------
July 01, Additions June 30, July 01, theyear June 30, June 30, rate
2022 2023 2022 (note 30) 2023 2023 % Rent 10.1 27,766 28,099
(Rupees in ‘000) Utilities 2,943 2,943
Freehold land 3 - 3 - - - 3 - Others 1,108 1,107
Building on 10.2 31,817 32,149
freehold land 1,083 - 1,083 1,083 - 1,083 - 10
Showroom 7,800 - 7,800 5,265 702 5,967 1,833 10 10.1 Includes security deposit amounting to Rs.1.266 million (2022: 1.266 million) against rent paid to Habib
Apartments 6,000 - 6,000 2,745 540 3,285 2,715 10 Metro Pakistan (Pvt) Limited, a related party.
2023 14,886 - 14,886 9,093 1,242 10,335 4,551
10.2 Represents refundable deposits paid to landlords, utility and other service providers.
2022 14,886 - 14,886 7,851 1,242 9,093 5,793
2023 2022
11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net Note = -------ee- (Rupees in ‘000) -----------
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences:
- provisions 176,868 136,044
- lease liabilities and right of use assets 20,679 15,417
- long-term financing and deferred income - 1,506
197,547 152,967
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences:
- accelerated tax depreciation (156,261) (187,700)
- unrealised gain on invetments (197) -
(156,458) (187,700)
41,089 (34,733)
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12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

14.

STORES AND SPARE PARTS

Stores
Spare parts
- in hand

- in transit

Provision for slow moving stores and spare parts

12.1

Movement of provision for slow moving stores and spare parts:

Balance at beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Balance at end of the year
STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw and packing material

- in hand

- in transit

Work-in-process

Finished goods

- manufacturing

- trading

Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade

Includes stock-in-trade costing Rs. 766.563 million (2022: Rs. 177.866 million) which has been written
down to its net realizable value (NRV) amounting to Rs. 254.766 million (2022: Rs. 56.875 million) during

the year.

Movement of provision for slow moving stock-in-trade:
Balance at beginning of the year

Charge for the year

Balance at end of the year

TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured
- Considered good

- Considered doubtful

Allowance for expected credit loss

29.1

20.1

29.1

20.1
29.2
13.1

13.2

Note

20.1

14.1&14.2

14.3

2023

2022

(Rupees in ‘000) ------------

269,509 195,205
504,307 461,484
114,252 13,902
618,559 475,386
888,068 670,501

(159,132) (129,661)
728,936 540,930
129,661 102,511

29,471 27,150
159,132 129,661
797,689 924,784
206,912 147,048

1,004,601 1,071,832
109,518 42,804
965,316 484,701

17,649 12,267
982,965 496,968

2,097,084 1,611,604
(38,116) (27,094)

2,058,968 1,584,510

2023

2022

(Rupees in ‘000) -----------—-

27,094 24,726
11,022 2,368
38,116 27,094
411,969 175,043
157,975 177,719
569,944 352,762
(157,975) (177,719)
411,969 175,043
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14.1

14.2

14.3

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

Includes receivables from the following related parties that are neither past due nor impaired.

2023 2022
Note  —oooeeee- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
Indus Motor Company Limited 544 1,999
Thal Limited 146 -

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year
was Rs. 6.504 million (2022: Rs. 5.062 million).

2023 2022
Movement in allowance for expected credit loss: \\[o] (= ———— (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
Balance at beginning of the year 177,719 158,236
(Reversal) / allowance for expected credit loss for the year (5,168) 19,546
Written-off during the year (14,576) (63)
Balance at end of the year 157,975 177,719
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good
Loans
Employees 151 5,666 3,495
Advances
Employees 342 295
Suppliers and contractors 36,787 38,142
Collector of customs 3,735 8,915
40,864 47,352
46,530 50,847

Represent loans given for the purchase of household equipment to employees which are repayable
within a year of disbursement. These carry no mark-up and are secured against staff retirement benefits.

2023 2022
Note  —oeeeeeeee- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments
Insurance 5,949 5,559
Letter of guarantee 2,048 2,165
Software and licences 7,911 2,404
Others 930 2,951
16,838 13,079
Deposits
Rent 16.1 5,534 -
LC Margin 88,620 -
94,154 -
Other receivables 5,781 2,229
116,773 15,308

Includes security deposit amounting to Rs.0.709 million (2022: 0.709 million) against rent paid to Thal
Limited, a related party.
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17.1

17.2

17.3

18.

2023 2022
———————————— (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS Note
At amortised cost

Term deposit receipts (TDRS)

- up to three months 17.1 276,000 416,000
Treasury bill (T-Bill)
- up to three months 17.2 96,909 48,359
372,909 464,359
At fair value through profit or loss
Mutual fund units 17.3 964,397 884,015
1,337,306 1,348,374

Represents term deposit receipts (TDRs) ranging from 15 days to 3 months term (2022: 15 days to
3 months) with various commercial banks under conventional banking relationship carrying profit at
the rate of 17.5% to 20.25% (2022: 9% to 18.5%) per annum, having latest maturity up to July 05,
2023 (2022: July 15, 2022). This includes a TDR with the Bank Alfalah amounting to Rs. 56.00
million (2022: 56.00 million) which is placed under lien against the SBP refinance scheme for
renewable energy as disclosed in note 20.

This carries mark-up rate of 21.95% (2022: 14.5%) per annum with latest maturity in August 2023.

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Units -- NAV in Rupees -- -- (Rupees in ‘000) --
MCB Arif Habib Cash Management 1,193,426 1,485,442 101.46 101.30 121,088 150,475
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund 1,621,005 - 50.00 - 81,050
Faysal Islamic Cash Fund - 473,963 - 100.00 - 47,396
Al Hamra Islamic Money Market Fund - 55,199 - 99.51 - 5,493
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 575,522 1,246,539 101.19 101.09 58,235 126,010
HBL Cash Fund 1,542,090 1,150,792 102.16 101.50 157,547 116,804
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 2,139,302 544,106 98.84 98.37 211,441 53,525
Alfalah Islamic Rozana Amdani Fund - 169,132 - 100.00 - 16,913
Lakson Investment Money Market Fund - 558,655 - 101.40 - 56,646
UBL Al Ameen Islamic Cash Plan - 1 - 13,892 - 100.00 - 1,389
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 5,156,585 1,362,824 50.38 50.47 259,807 68,779
NBP Money Market Fund 15,603,365 13,041,238 10.2 9.93 156,279 129,514
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan - 300,209 - 100.00 - 30,021
26,210,290 22,022,996 964,397 884,015
2023 2022
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note  —eeoeeeee- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Cash in hand 4,052 5,567

Cash at banks:
Current accounts with;

- conventional banks 18.1 133,449 78,951
- islamic banks 48,024 22,620
Saving accounts 18.2 219,114 19,359
400,587 120,930

404,639 126,497
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18.1

18.2

19.

19.1

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

Includes balance of Rs. 20.808 million (2022: Rs. 11.685 million) maintained with Bank Al Habib
Limited, a related party.

These carry profit rates ranging from 10% to 20% per annum (2022: 5.5% to 12.25% per annum).
These balances are held in accounts maintained under conventional banking.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2023 2023 2023 2022
(Number of sharesin‘000) e (Rupees in ‘000) ------------

Ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each

199,627 199,627 Fully paid-up in cash 998,135 998,135
Issued for consideration other

1,150 1,150 than cash 5,750 5,750

38,543 38,543 Issued as bonus shares 192,715 192,715

239,320 239,320 1,196,600 1,196,600
Voting rights and board selection are in proportion to the shareholding.

2023 2022

LONG-TERM FINANCING - SECURED NOLE oo (RUpees in “000) -

SBP refinance scheme for renewable energy 20.1 &20.3 269,532 232,537

Term loan 20.2 290,000 -

Current maturity of long-term financing (22,820) (8,712)

536,712 223,825

This represents long-term financings obtained from a conventional bank under State Bank of Pakistan’s
(SBP) Refinance Scheme for Renewable Energy to setup a Solar Power Project. The total facility
amounts to Rs. 500 million and carries markup rate of 3% plus spread of 0.45% per annum payable
guarterly. These financings are recognized at the present value using the effective interest rates
applicable at the dates of the drawdown at 3 month KIBOR plus 0.5% (June 2022: 3 month KIBOR plus
0.5%) per annum. The differential of present value and the are recognized as deferred income and will be
amortized when the related asset is available for use. The financings are repayable in ten years with two
years grace period from the date of disbursement. The facility is secured against first specific hypotheca-
tion charge over present and future plant and machinery related to the solar power project for the
disbursed amount in addition to margin of 10% covered through lien over TDR.

This represents term loan obtained from Allied Bank Limited to finance the CAPEX requirement of the
Company. The total facility amounts to Rs. 300 million and carries mark-up at the rate of six months
KIBOR plus 0.35% per annum payable semi annually. The facility is repayable in six years with two years
grace period from the date of disbursement in eight equal semi annual installments. The facility is secured
against first pari pasu hypothecation charge on fixed assets of the Company.

2023 2022
Movement of long-term financing: Note = ----------e- (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
Balance at beginning of the year 232,537 159,190
Financing received during the year 50,806 91,418
Repayment made during the year (10,715) (9,624)
Recognised as deferred income 21 (24,317) (24,195)
Unwinding of finance cost 21,221 15,748
Balance at end of the year 269,532 232,537
Current maturity of long-term financing (22,820) (8,712)

246,712 223,825
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21.

21.1

22.

22.1

22.2

23.

DEFFERRED INCOME 2023 2022
Note  ------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------
Movement of deferred income:

Balance at beginning of the year 63,765 41,765
Recognised during the year 21.1 24,317 24,195
Amortized during the year 32 (5,494) (2,195)
Balance at end of the year 82,588 63,765
Current maturity of deferred income (5,494) (5,494)

77,094 58,271

This represents deferred income recognised in respect of the benefit of below-market interest rate
on long-term financing. The benefit has been measured as the difference between the fair value of
the loan and the proceeds received. The Company has used the prevailing market rate of mark-up
for similar instruments to calculate fair values of respective loans. The following is the movement of
deferred income.
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23.1 The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), through its judgment dated August 13, 2020 has

declared GIDC Act, 2015 a valid legislation. Under the judgement, all gas consumers including the Com-
pany were ordered to pay the outstanding GIDC liability as at July 31, 2020 to the Government in 24
equal monthly installments. GIDC was declared payable on the presumption that burden of same has
been passed to the customers. Aggrieved by the Judgement, the Company, along with other industries,
filed a review petition before the SCP, which was dismissed by the SCP on November 2, 2020. However,
while deciding the review petition, the SCP stated that the Government of Pakistan (GoP) is agreed to
recover the arrears in 48 monthly installments instead of 24 monthly installments.

The Company also filed a Suit with the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) in September 2020 against
collection of GIDC installments, before a factual determination of GIDC pass on is carried out, and the
HCS granted a stay in September 2020 against recovery of GIDC payable from the Company till the final-
ization of matter by HCS. The matter is currently pending in the HCS.

Pursuant to the above decisions of the SCP, the management of the Company, in the prior year,
derecognised the liability for GIDC and recognised new liability for GIDC at the present value of future
cashflows considering 48 installments. The Company started making payments from November 2020 in

2023 2022 48 equal monthly installments. However, the installments for the period from October 2021 to June 2023
LEASE LIABILITIES Note -------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------- amounting to Rs. 498.244 million were not paid by the Company under the aforementioned stay order
from HCS as SSGC started recovering GIDC as per 24 equal installments instead of 48 equal install-
Lease liabilities 22.1 380,224 310,080 ments from October 2021.
Current maturity of lease liabilities (156,112) (111,355)
224,112 198,725 Based on the legal advice obtained by the management, the Company is confident that there are strong
Movement of lease liabilities: grounds to support that recovery in 48 equal installments remains applicable and accordingly, no adjust-
ment is required to be made in the measurement of financial liability in these financial statements.
Balance at beginning of the year 310,080 281,445 Further, the Company has also not accounted for the late payment surcharge based on the recovery stay
Additions during the year 178,940 148,044 granted by the HCS in line with the advice of its legal advisor. The current and non-current portion of
Disposal during the year - (32,666) GIDC in the financial statements have been segregated based on recovery in 48 equal monthly install-
Remeasurement of lease liabilities 1,941 3,432 ments and the unpaid installments from October 2021 to June 2024 are included in the current maturity
Unwinding of finance cost during the year 49,251 29,352 of GIDC.
Payments made during the year (159,988) (119,527) June 30, June 30,
Balance at end of the year 380,224 310,080 2023 2022
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at the statement of financial position date is as follows:
e pees n000) 2. Creditors 241 1,585,626 696,867
Accrued liabilities and levies 24.2 1,592,648 1,365,120
Up to one year 156,112 111,355 Advance from customers 431,797 365,414
After one year 224,112 198,725 Payable to provident fund 24.3 5,535 5,148
Total lease liabilities 380,224 310,080 Advance from employees against vehicles 24.4 16,044 14,168
Withholding tax payable 2,689 7,235
GAS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CESS (GIDC) PAYABLE Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 24.5 5,527 48,191
Workers’ Welfare Fund 24.6 42,799 47,256
Balance at beginning of the year 779,898 797,565 3,682,665 2,549,399
Unwinding of finance cost 35,015 53,511
Payments made during the year - (71,178)
Current maturity of GIDC payable (767,915) (463,229)
Balance at end of the year 46,998 316,669
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_ - 2023 2022
24.1 Includes payable due to the following related parties: ~ — (RUPEES in ‘000) --—rro-
Thal Limited 46,508 33,410
Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited - 190
Habib Insurance 8,587 -

24.2 Includes accrual for leave encashment of Rs. 16.434 million (2022: Rs. 10.663 million) and bonus
of Rs. 81.945 million (2022: Rs. 75.430 million).

24.3 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

24.4 Represents amount received from employees against Company provided vehicles and will be
adjusted on transfer of vehicle to the employee as per the Company policy.

2023 2022
245 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund e (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Balance at beginning of the year 48,191 8,614
Allocation for the year 10,527 48,191
58,718 56,805
Payment made during the year (53,191) (8,614)
Balance at end of the year 5,527 48,191

24.6 Workers’ Welfare Fund
Balance at beginning of the year 47,256 50,051
Allocation for the year 16,607 31,926
63,863 81,977
Payment made during the year (21,064) (34,721)
Balance at end of the year 42,799 47,256

25.  UNPAID DIVIDEND / UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

The Company has opened separate bank accounts as required under the provision of section 244

Annual Report 2023 86

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
27.1 Contingencies

The taxation authorities passed amended assessment orders for the tax years 2018 and 2019
during the year ended June 30, 2022 wherein disallowances were made in respect of various
matters including excess bank credit entries, excess claim of sales tax, provision against Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess and claim of certain expenses. Consequently, tax demands of Rs.
110.116 million and Rs. 148.904 million for the tax years 2018 and 2019 respectively were created.
The Company has filed appeals against the aforesaid orders before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals-Il), Karachi, which are pending adjudication. Further, automatic stay from the
recovery of tax has been obtained in terms of section 140 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by
making payment of 10% of the tax demands created above. Based on the management's
assessment and tax advisor's opinion, the Company is confident that ultimate outcome will be in
favour of the Company and accordingly, no provision is required to be recorded in these financial
statements in respect of this matter.

27.2 Commitments

0] Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit against raw materials and spares
amounting to Rs. 757.131 million (2022: Rs. 514.696 million), issued by commercial banks.

(i) Commitments in respect of capital expenditure amounting to Rs. Nil (2022: Rs. 51.950
million) for the import of machinery, issued by commercial banks.

(i) Commitment in respect of bank guarantees issued by a commercial bank in favour of:

26.

of the Act and the required amounts have been transferred accordingly.
SALES TAX PAYABLE

Includes an amount of Rs. 9.820 million (2022: 6.769 million), Nil (2022: 29.228 million) and
352.429 million (2022: 352.429 million) in respect of withholding provincial sales tax, sales tax pay-
able (federal) and further tax (not charged to the customers) respectively as at the statement of
financial position date.

2023 2022
Note --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 447,396 432,576
Nazir of Sindh High Court 384,713 341,065
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd 80,000 40,000
Excise and Taxation Department 148,381 108,381
K-Electric 16,516 16,516
PARCO Pearl (Private) Limited 100,000 -
1,177,006 938,538
28. TURNOVER - net
Local

Manufacturing 16,849,177 14,191,998
Trading 97,412 34,591
16,946,589 14,226,589
Trade discount (23,431) (33,939)

Sales tax
Manufacturing (2,726,310) (2,288,658)
Trading (14,369) (5,026)
(2,740,679) (2,293,684)

28.1

28.1 14,182,479

11,898,966

Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at beginning of the year

amounted to Rs. 257.741. million (2022: Rs. 130.616 million).
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29. COST OF SALES

Manufacturing
Trading

29.1 Cost of sales - manufacturing
Raw and packing materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

Manufacturing expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Fuel and power

Stores and spare parts consumed
Provision for slow moving stores and spare parts
Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade
Depreciation on

- operating fixed assets

- right-of-use assets

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Vehicle running expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Printing and stationery

Communication

Rates and taxes

Research costs

Legal and professional charges

Others

Work-in-process

Opening stock

Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

2023 2022
Note  ----—----- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
29.1 11,125,927 8,883,014
29.2 69,472 20,953
11,195,399 8,903,967
1,071,832 818,486
5,457,502 3,969,654
13  (1,004,601) (1,071,832)
5,524,733 3,716,308
29.1.1| 1,070,687 943,165
3,406,101 2,726,007
770,679 510,788
121 29,471 27,150
13.2 11,022 2,368
7.3 590,285 567,015
8.3 22,841 31,965
152,762 170,243
22,377 12,894
32,897 22,530
12,562 2,967
7,713 6,551
3,780 4,780
1,776 1,651
8,157 2,814
4,628 2,915
785 2,341
6,148,523 5,038,144
42,804 42,108
13 (109,518) (42,804)
11,606,542 8,753,756
484,701 613,959
13 (965,316) (484,701)
11,125,927 8,883,014

29.1.1Includes Rs. 16.837 million (2022: Rs. 15.245 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

29.2 Cost of sales - trading

Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

2023 2022
Note  ----—----- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
12,267 16,035
74,854 17,185
13 (17,649) (12,267)
69,472 20,953
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2023 2022
30. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS Note = --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.1 264,288 232,101
Freight 1,486,905 1,038,743
Advertisement and sales promotion 77,608 92,432
Travelling and conveyance 19,760 38,246
Rates and taxes 10,264 9,908
Communication 4,753 6,364
Insurance 9,886 8,598
Depreciation on

- operating fixed assets 7.3 14,748 11,763
- right-of-use assets 8.3 94,203 69,758
- investment properties 9 1,242 1,242
Vehicle running expenses 23,521 16,049
Repairs and maintenance 49,540 28,674
Utilities 55,575 33,491
Printing and stationery 11,854 10,233
Entertainment 2,708 2,502
Legal and professional charges 1,636 1,871
Others 957 245
2,129,448 1,602,220

30.1 Includes Rs. 8.440 million (2022: Rs. 7.465 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
2023 2022
31. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note  --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.1 305,198 270,939
Travelling and conveyance 6,845 5,674
Printing and stationery 17,318 13,315
Legal and professional charges 6,420 5,702
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 7.3 9,832 7,871
Vehicle running expenses 20,351 12,311
Communication 2,054 2,333
Repair and maintenance 9,575 8,686
Auditors’ remuneration 31.2 3,316 2,776
Subscriptions 388 433
Insurance 1,942 2,398
Others 3,452 3,418
386,691 335,856

31.1 Includes Rs. 8.608 million (2022: Rs. 7.534 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
2023 2022
31.2 Auditors’ remuneration e (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Audit fee 1,450 1,150
Half-yearly review fee 351 290
Taxation services 90 90
Other certifications and reviews 725 612
Out of pocket expenses and taxes 700 634
3,316 2,776
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2023 2022 34.2 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees except for Mr. Rafig M. Habib
32. OTHER INCOME Note  --------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------- who is a trustee of Muhammad Ali Habib Welfare Trust, a related party.
Income from financial assets 2023 2022
Profit on bank deposits / saving accounts 32.1 10,749 3,938 35. TAXATION N[O 1= S— (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Interest income on TDRs 28,490 37,462
Dividend income on mutual fund units 69,163 81,679 Current 342,726 528,891
Unrealised gain on short-term investments - mutual fund units 788 1,034 Deferred (75,822) (19,424)
Amortization of deferred income 5,494 2,195 266,904 509,467
Income from Treasury Bills 2,173 567
116,857 126,875 2023 2022
35.1 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit: - (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Income from non-financial assets Profit before tax 304,517 1,006,789
Rental income from investment property 792 792
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 870 3,011 Tax at applicable rate of 39% (2022: 33%) 118,762 332,240
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets - 5,608 Tax effects of:
Income from scrap sales 49,027 38,926 expenses inadmissible for tax purposes 185,449 158,625
Others 4,593 5,976 income subject to reduced rate of tax (13,021) (9,295)
55,282 54,313 tax rebate on donations (3,042) (3,125)
172,139 181,188 others (21,244) 31,022
_ _ _ _ ) 266,904 509,467
32.1 Represents profit on bank accounts under conventional banking relationship.
35.2 The Company computes tax provisions based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax
2023 2022 laws to ensure that sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. Accordingly, the
33. FINANCECOSTS e (Rupees in ‘000) --------- management of the Company has assessed the sufficiency of the tax provisions and believes that
the tax provisions are sufficient to reflect the actual tax liability of the Company.
Mark-up on long-term financing 65,311 15,748
Mark-up on short-term financing 24,096 -
Unwinding of finance cost of lease liabilities 22.1 49,251 29,352 36. EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted Note 2023 2022
Unwinding of finance cost of GIDC 23 35,015 53,511
173,673 98,611 Profit for the year (Rupees in '000) 37,613 497,322
Bank charges and commission 20,001 17,229
193,674 115,840 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (shares in ‘000) 239,320 239,320
34. OTHER EXPENSES
_ o Earnings per share (Rupees) - basic and diluted 36.1 0.16 2.08
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 24.5 10,527 48,191
Workers’ Welfare Fund 24.6 16,607 31,926 36.1 There is no dilutive effect of basic earnings per share of the Company.
Donations 34.1 2,766 10,000
Exchange loss - net 120,157 5,819
150,057 95,936 2023 2022
37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note  --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
34.1 Donation to following parties exceeds the higher of 10% of the Company’s total donations or Rs. 1 million:
2023 2022 Short-term investments - TDRs and T-Bills 17 316,909 464,359
_________ (Rupees in ‘000) --------- Cash and bank balances 18 404,639 126,497
_ 721,548 590,856
The Indus Hospital 3,000 3,000
Muhammad Ali Habib Welfare Trust - 3,845
Patients' Aid Foundation 1,800 1,500
Karachi Relief Trust 3,000 -
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38.

38.1

(i)

(if)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk. Taken as a whole, the Company is exposed to market risk (including interest rate risk,
currency risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the financial performance. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes and assumptions during the year ended 30 June 2023 which are summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, and equity price
risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company's certain saving accounts,
short-term investments in TDRs and treasury bills, long-term financing and short-term running
finance. The company manages it's interest rate risk by placing it's excess funds in saving accounts
in banks and by investing in TDRs and treasury bills. Management of the Company estimates that
1% increase in the market interest rate, with all other factors remaining constant, would increase the
Company’s profit before tax by Rs. 0.127 million (2022: Rs. 2.513 million) and a 1% decrease would
result in the decrease in the Company’s profit before tax by the same amount. However, in practice,
the actual result may differ from the sensitivity analysis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities. It mainly
arises when receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency.

The following is the foreign currency exposure as at the statement of financial position date:

2023 2022
Trade payables - USD 1,487,068 782,852
Trade payables - Euro 920,742 2,015
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at
statement of financial position date: 2023 2022

————————— (Rupees) ---------
Exchange rate — USD 285.99 204.85
Exchange rate — Euro 312.93 213.81
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(iii)

38.2

A ten percent strengthening / weakening of the Pakistani Rupee against the above foreign
currencies at the reporting date would increase / decrease profit before tax for the year by Rs. 71.34
million (2022: Rs. 16.08 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous year.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity instruments. The
Company is not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in
equity shares as at the statement of financial position date.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts
to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. Concentration of
credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company is mainly
exposed to credit risk on long-term security deposits, trade debts, loans and advances, short-term
investments and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure by
dealing mostly with regular and permanent parties who pay on due dates.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at statement of financial position date is as follows:

2023 2022

Note  ----mmmm- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------

Long-term security deposits 10 31,817 32,149
Trade debts 14 411,969 175,043
Other receivables 16 5,781 2,229
Short-term investments 17 1,337,306 1,348,374
Bank balances 18 400,587 120,930
2,187,460 1,678,725

Quality of financial assets

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total
credit exposure.

The Company’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into
with diverse credit worthy counterparties, thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit
risk.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by refer-
ence to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates as
follows:

2023 2022
Customers with no defaults in the past oneyear e (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Trade debts 411,969 175,043
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk on the Company's trade debts:
2023

Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default
Expected credit loss
Unimpaired trade debts

Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default
Expected credit loss
Unimpaired trade debts

as follows:

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank-Al-Habib Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

Not yet Days Past Due
due 31-90 days 91-180 days Over 180 Total
Rupees in ‘000’
1% 3% 10% 95%
313,602 58,339 4 38,486 159,517 569,944
(1,647) (1,669) (3,825) (150,834) (157,975)
311,955 56,670 34,661 8,683 411,969
2022
Not yet Days Past Due
due 31-90 days 91-180 days Over 180 Total
Rupees in ‘000’
2% 6% 21% 98%
90,350 49,698 44,770 167,944 352,762
(1,536) (3,011) (9,180) (163,992) (177,719)
88,814 46,687 35,590 3,952 175,043

38.2.1The credit quality of balances with banks can be assessed with reference to external credit rating

Rating Ratings 2023 2022 2023 2022
Agency Amount of bank balances % of total balances
Rupees in ‘000
PACRA A-1+/AAA 11,821 6,439 2.95% 5.32%
PACRA A-1+/AA+ 14,549 12,826 3.63% 10.61%
PACRA A-1+/AA+ 23,272 12,426 5.81% 10.28%
PACRA A-1+/AAA 20,809 11,685 5.19% 9.66%
PACRA A-1+/AA 23,751 3,606 5.93% 2.98%
VIS A-1+/AAA 3,094 10,932 0.77% 9.04%
PACRA A-1+/AA+ 216,777 25,328 54.12% 20.95%
PACRA A-1+/AAA 26,473 16,819 6.61% 13.91%
PACRA  Al+/AA- 20,433 - 5.10% 0.00%
VIS A-1+/ AAA 22,059 18,963 5.51% 15.68%
VIS A-1+/ AAA 15,336 1,855 3.83% 1.53%
VIS A-1+/AA 2,213 51 0.55% 0.04%
400,587 120,930 100.00% 100.00%
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38.2.2 The credit quality of investments held in mutual funds can be assessed with reference to external

38.3

credit rating as follows:

MCB Arif Habib Cash Management Optimizer

Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund
Faysal Islamic Cash Fund

Al Hamra Islamic Money Market Fund

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund
HBL Cash Fund
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund

Alfalah Islamic Rozana Amdani Fund

Lakson Investment Money Market Fund

UBL Al Ameen Islamic Cash Plan - 1
Pakistan Cash Management Fund

NBP Money Market Fund
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan

Liquidity risk

Rating
Agency

PACRA
JCR VIS
JCR VIS

PACRA
JCR VIS
JCR VIS

PACRA

PACRA

PACRA
JCR VIS

PACRA

PACRA

PACRA

Ratings 2023 2022
% of total balances

AA+(f) 12.56% 17.02%
AA+(f) 0.00% 9.17%
AA(f) 0.00% 5.36%
AA+(f) 0.00% 0.62%
AA+(f) 6.04% 14.25%
AA+(f) 16.34% 13.22%
AA+(f) 21.92% 6.05%
AA() 0.00% 1.91%
AA+(f) 0.00% 6.41%
AA+(f) 0.00% 0.16%
AA+(f)  26.94% 7.78%
AA(f) 16.20% 14.65%
AA+(f) 0.00% 3.40%
100.00%  100.00%

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash
and bank balances, liquid investments and by keeping committed credit lines. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at undiscounted values at the
following statement of financial position dates:

2023

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed / unpaid dividends
GIDC payable

2022

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed / unpaid dividends
GIDC payable

Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 Total
demand months months  years years
Rupees in ‘000’

5,705 17,115 413,268 123,444 559,532
43,838 112,274 224,112 - 380,224
- 3,183,809 - - - 3,183,809
6,945 - - - - 6,945
463,229 76,172 228,515 46,997 - 814,913
470,174 3,309,524 357,904 684,377 123,444 4,945,423
- 2,461 7,377 161,814 170,298 341,950
- 31,858 78,870 238,930 15,317 364,975
- 2,067,135 - - - 2,067,135
6,221 - - - - 6,221
213,533 71,178 213,533 332,162 - 830,406
219,754 2,172,632 299,780 732,906 185,615 3,610,687
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38.4

38.5

38.5.1

38.5.2

38.6

Capital Risk Management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. As of the reporting date, the gearing ratio is as follows:

2023 2022

--------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------

Total debt 613,806 282,096
Total equity 2,700,231 2,842,108
Total debt plus equity 3,314,037 3,124,204
Gearing ratio 18.52% 9.03%

Unavailed Credit Facilities

The facility for short-term running finance, opening letters of credit and letters of guarantees
amounted to Rs. 2,250 million (2022: Rs. 2,250 million), Rs. 2,050 million (2022: Rs. 950 million)
and Rs. 1,600 million (2022: Rs. 1,400 million) respectively, of which Rs. 2,250 million (2022: Rs.
2,250 million), Rs. 1,073 million (2022: Rs. 114 million) and Rs. 423 million (2022: Rs. 461 million)
respectively, remained unutilized as at the statement of financial position date.

Mark-up rates on running finance facilities range from three month KIBOR + 0.5% to six months
KIBOR + 0.35% to 1% (2022: three month KIBOR + 0.5% to six months KIBOR + 0.35% to 1%) per
annum.

2023 2022
Note --------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Financial Instruments by category
Financial assets
at amortised cost
Long-term security deposits 10 31,817 32,149
Trade debts 14 411,969 175,043
Loan to employees 15 5,666 3,495
Other receivables 16 5,781 2,229
Short-term investments - TDRs and Treasury bills 17 372,909 464,359
Cash and bank balances 18 404,639 126,497
1,232,781 803,772
at fair value through profit or loss
Short-term investments - mutual fund units 17 964,397 884,015
2,197,178 1,687,787
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease liabilities 22 380,224 310,080
Long-term financing 20 536,712 223,825
Trade and other payables 24 3,183,809 2,067,135
Unclaimed dividend 25 4,184 3,963
Unpaid dividend 25 2,761 2,258

4,107,690

2,607,261
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39.

Annual Report 2023 96

CHANGES IN LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Balance at beginning of the year

Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid during the year
Financing obtained during the year
Payments made during the year

Other changes

Dividend declared during the year
Remeasurement of lease liabilities
Unwinding of finance cost during the year
Amortization of deferred income
Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Balance at end of the year

Balance at beginning of the year

Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid during the year
Financing obtained during the year
Payments made during the year

Other changes

Dividend declared during the year
Remeasurement of lease liabilities
Unwinding of finance cost during the year
Amortization of deferred income
Additions during the year

Disposal during the year

Balance at end of the year

2023
Long-term
_ financing
Unclaimed/ including
unpaid Lease deferred
dividend liabilities income

————————— (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
6,221 310,080 296,302

(178,766) - -
- -l 340,806
| (159,988)|  (10,715)

(178,766)  (159,988) 330,001

179,490 - -
- 1,941 -
- 49,251 21,221
- - (5,494)
- 178,940 -
179,490 230,132 15,727

6,945 380,224 642,120

2022
Long-term
_ financing
Unclaimed/ including
L_m_pald Lease deferred
dividend liabilities income

--------- (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
4,411 281,445 200,955

(297,340) - -
- - 91,418

| (119,527) (9,624)
(297,340)  (119,527) 81,794
299,150 - -

- 3,432 -

- 29,352 15,748

- - (2,195)

- 148,044 -

| (32,666) -

299,150 148,162 13,553
6,221 310,080 296,302




97 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

40.

40.1

40.2

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprise of associated companies, staff retirement benefits, direc-
tors and key management personnel. All the transactions with related parties are entered into at
agreed terms as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Balances outstanding with
related parties have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. Details of
transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed else-
where in these financial statements, are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2023 2022

Associated companies / other related parties - (Rupees in ‘000) ---------
Sales 24,966 24,491
Purchases of goods, material and services 219,900 170,596
Purchase of vehicles 12,835 63,682
Insurance premium 39,124 26,250
Insurance claims received 6,906 1,370
Lease rentals and service charges paid 19,170 17,676
Donation paid - 3,845
Key management personnel
Remuneration and other benefits of
key management personnel 43,208 41,333
Staff retirement benefits
Contribution to provident fund 33,887 30,245

Following are the details of related parties and associated companies with whom the Company had
entered into transactions or has arrangement / agreement in place.

Company Name Basis of relationship Aggregate % of
shareholding in

the Company

Habib Insurance Company Limited Common Directorship 0.35
Indus Motor Company Limited Common Directorship N/A
Muhammad Ali Habib Welfare Trust Common Directorship N/A
Thal Limited Common Directorship 1.3
Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited =~ Common Directorship N/A
Razaque Steels (Private) Limited Common Directorship N/A
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited -

Employees' Provident Fund Staff retirement benefits N/A
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41.

41.1

41.2

41.3

42.

43.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year are as follows:

2023 2022
Chief Executives Chief Executives
Executive Executive
Officer Officer
----------------- Rupees in ‘000 -----------------
Managerial remuneration 20,106 85,739 18,278 61,054
Housing and utilities 14,732 72,797 12,963 49,996
Leave fare assistance, leave encashment and bonus 20,791 21,764 35,385 25,964
Reimbursement of medical 2,011 7,775 1,828 5,671
Retirement benefits 1,876 6,775 1,705 5,109
59,516 194,850 70,159 147,794
Number of persons 1 34 1 33

In addition, the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are provided with free use of the
Company maintained cars.

Fee amounting to Rs. 3.1 million (2022: Rs. 2.3 million) was paid to 4 non-executive (2022: 4
non-executive directors) of the Company for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committee during the year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair
value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowl-
edgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Fair value hierarchy
The different levels to analyse financial assets carried at fair value have been defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted market price

Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable); and
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables)

As of the statement of financial position date, the Company does not have any financial assets
carried at fair value that required categorization in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 except short-term
investment in mutual fund units which is categorized as Level 1 financial assets.

PRODUCTION CAPACITY

During the year, the tile production attained was 12.01 million sg. meters (2022: 11.90 million sq.
meters) against annual manufacturing capacity of 14.04 million sq. meters (2022: 14.04 million sq.
meters).
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44,

45.

46.

47.

47.1

47.2

48.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 12, 2023 proposed no cash dividend
(2022: Rs. 0.75 per share) for the year ended 30 June 2023.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2023 2022
Total number of employees as at year end 730 745
Average number of employees during the year 735 746

OPERATING SEGMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

All sales of the Company comprise of sale of wall tiles, floor tiles and other building matrerial
products.

All non-current assets of the Company at the end of the current and preceding year were located in
Pakistan.

Sales to five major customers of the Company are around 14% of the Company’s total sales during
the year (2022: 15%).

GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousands unless otherwise stated.

Certain prior year's figures have been reclassified for better presentation, wherever necessary.
However, there are no material reclassifications to report.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 12, 2023 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Juteg I b AL Mot Jd., J. Camq’

MUSTAFA JAFAR
Chief Financial Officer

SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI
Chief Executive Officer Director

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as at June 30, 2023

Annual Report 2023 100

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held  Percentage
DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSE (S) AND CHILDREN
Rafig M. Habib 1 4,162,522 1.74
Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery 1 43,000 0.02
Muhammad Salman Burney 1 1,000 0.00
Abdul Hai Mehmood Bhai Mian 1 663,594 0.28
Feroze Jehangir Cawasji 1 1,000 0.00
Farhana Mowjee Khan 1 1,000 0.00
Imran Ali Habib 2 347,476 0.15
Jamila Rafiq 1 1,377,752 0.58
Rukhsana Bibi 1 781,774 0.33
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES
Thal Limited 1 3,121,549 1.30
PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 3 753,555 0.31
INSURANCE COMPANIES 4 1,956,802 0.82
MODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS 18 29,722,206 12.42
GENERAL PUBLIC
a. Local 3807 50,614,809 21.15
b. Foreign 67 365,468 0.15
FOREIGN COMPANIES 21 131,167,292 54.81
OTHERS 68 14,239,676 5.95
Totals 3999 239,320,475 100.00

Share holders holding 5% or more

ROBERT FINANCE CORPORATION AG
AYLESBURY INTERNATIONAL LTD
ASAD LIMITED

MUSTAFA LIMITED

Shares Held

72,102,223
16,009,983
12,840,786
12,418,386

Percentage

30.13
6.69
5.37
5.19
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as at June 30, 2023

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab

Total Shares Held

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as at June 30, 2023

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab
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Total Shares Held
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250000
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285000
290000

24,798
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2,353,697
2,110,134
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1,242,093
871,787
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256,938
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366,305
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556,420
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300000
325000
330000
340000
345000
350000
370000
380000
390000
415000
445000
455000
460000
480000
495000
500000
505000
520000
550000
600000
660000
665000
680000
750000
785000
805000
960000
1000000
1040000
1100000
1125000
1140000
1265000
1380000
1420000
1560000
1680000
2030000
2140000
2255000
2315000
2445000
2510000
2575000
2780000
2990000
3080000
3125000
3245000

1,200,000
645,763
329,137
339,433
343,500
692,952
366,000
379,000
389,500
414,000
441,558
450,500
460,000
480,000
494,500
500,000
500,500
519,714
550,000
600,000

1,316,660
663,594
676,500

1,500,000
781,774
802,000
956,000

2,000,000

1,039,428

1,100,000

1,122,631

1,139,322

1,264,500

1,377,752

1,415,092

3,115,642

1,675,695

2,025,500

2,135,500

2,251,500

2,311,168

2,440,152

2,509,602

2,574,660

2,775,015

11,953,331

3,079,468

3,121,549

3,240,500
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as at June 30, 2023

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab

Total Shares Held

3 3450001 to 3455000 10,364,667
1 3460001 to 3465000 3,460,497
1 3465001 to 3470000 3,469,471
1 3660001 to 3665000 3,663,993
1 3680001 to 3685000 3,683,908
1 3955001 to 3960000 3,957,422
1 4160001 to 4165000 4,162,522
1 4170001 to 4175000 4,174,641
1 6205001 to 6210000 6,207,788
1 7030001 to 7035000 7,030,157
1 11885001 to 11890000 11,890,000
1 16005001 to 16010000 16,009,983
1 60895001 60900000 60,897,425
3999 239,320,475

Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

PROXY FORM

I/We of

being a member(s) of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED and a holder of

ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No.

or CDC Participant ID No. Account No.

hereby appoint of

who is also member of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED Vide Folio No.
or CDC Participant ID No. Account No.

or failing him/her of

who is also member of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED vide Folio No.
or CDC Participant ID No. Account No.

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual

General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday , 23" day of October 2023, and at any adjournment

thereof.
As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2023
signed by the said
Witness Witness
(Signature) (Signature)

Name Name
Address Address
CNIC No. CNIC No.

Please affix

Rs. 5/-

Revenue

Stamp

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER(S)

NOTES:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
15" Milestone, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding
the Annual General Meeting.

P.T.O.



Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he / she himself / herself is a member of the Company. Except that
a corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a
member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / CORPORATE ENTITIES
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

b) Attested copy of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy form.
c) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

d) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.




